
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL  
 

Mike McGuinness, District 7    Melanie Rutherford, District 1 
President      Brett Nicholson, District 2 
William A. Carrington, District 6   Mikal Goodman, District 3 
President Pro Tem     Kathalee James, District 4 
       William Parker, Jr., District 5 
 
It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 

for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.” 
47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342         Phone: (248) 758-3200             Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., City Clerk 
         

        15th Session of the 11th Council 
April 5, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. 

Meeting Location:  City Council Chambers 47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342         
Meeting Agenda 

 
Call to Order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 
 
Moment of Silence 
 
Roll Call 
 
Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers from the Meeting 
 
Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
 
Approval of the Consent Agenda 

A. March 29, 2022 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. March 28, 2022 Parks, Recreation & Public Works Subcommittee Meeting Minutes 
C. March 28, 2022 Law & the Courts Subcommittee Meeting Minutes 
D. March 26, 2022 City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
E. March 25, 2022 Communications, Engagement & Operations Subcommittee Meeting Minutes 

 
Special Presentations 

A. Oakland County Emerging Initiatives Benefiting Pontiac 
Presentation Presenter:  Oakland County Executive David Coulter 
 

B. Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office Racial Justice Initiatives 
Presentation Presenters:  Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office Racial Justice Advisory Council 

 
Recognition of Elected Officials 
 
Agenda Address (Two Minutes Time Limit) 
 
Discussions 

A. Taxation – Discussion on Revenue Sources and the Cost of Road Improvement 
 

B. Cleaning Up Our Pontiac Neighborhoods Together 
-Yard Waste Bags Curbside Pickup has Resumed 
-Recycling Drop Off at City Hall Every Weekend 



2 
 

-Special Pickup Collection Every Other Week 
-Citywide Cleanup Efforts April 18 through April 23 
-Free City Landfill Days are April 23, April 30, May 7 
 (575 Collier Road in Pontiac, 8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m.) 
-Street Sweeping Plans, Challenges 
 

C. Current Employment Opportunities at Pontiac City Hall 
 
Agenda Items 
Resolutions  
Cable 

1. Resolution to Extend the Media Specialist Contractual Agreement Through the End of the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 (Discussion and Action) 

 
Community and Economic Development 

2. Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing to Establish an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for Parcel 
Number 64-14-30-453-001 for Micah 6 Community, LLC project Webster Community Center, located at 640 
W. Huron Street (Discussion and Action) 
 

3. Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing for Approval of Application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate for Micah 6 Community, LLC project Webster Community Center, located at 640 W. 
Huron Street (Discussion and Action) 

 
Finance 

4. Resolution to Approve Contract with National Career Group, LLC for $75,000 to provide Human Resources 
Contractual Services to the City and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Agreement (Discussion) 
 

5. Resolution to Approve a Proposed Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 Transfer $15,250 out of the 
General Fund-Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and $12,500 is transferred to the General Fund GL 
Account 101-171-702.000 Salaries & Wages and $1,250 is transferred to GL Account 101-171-715.000-FICA 
and $1,500 to GL Account 101-171-716.000-Medical Insurance. This budget proposed budget amendment is 
to fund the Public Relations/Events Specialist position in the Mayor’s Office. (Discussion and Action) 

6. Resolution to Authorize the City Clerk to Publish Notice of a Proposed Budget Amendment for the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 to Transfer $30,000 out of the General Fund-Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and $30,000 
is transferred to the General Fund–Economic Development Department GL Account 101-690-818.000 Other 
Professional Services to cover Contractual Services from Baker Tilly (Discussion and Action) 

 
Mayor’s Office 

7. Resolution to Approve the Implementation the Flock Safety System within the City of Pontiac for a Twelve-
Month Trial Period (Discussion and Action) 

 
Public Comment (Three Minutes Time Limit) 
 
Closing Comments 
 Mayor Greimel (Seven Minutes Time Limit) 
 Clerk and City Council (Three Minutes Time Limit) 
 
Adjournment 
 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

A 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

14th Session of the Eleventh Council 

A Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, March 29, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. by 
Council President Mike McGuinness. 

Invocation- Pastor Cornelius Berry, Word Believing Christian Center Church 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call 

Members Present - Mika! Goodman, Kathalee James, Mike McGuinness, Brett Nicholson, William 
Parker Jr., and Melanie Rutherford · 

Mayor Greimel was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
Motion to excuse Councilperson William. Carrington for personal reasons. Moved by 

Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Goddman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker and Rutherford 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve the agenda. Mdved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Goodman. There was discussion on the motion. 

Motion to add a discussion #3- Roadside BBQ & Food Truck to the agenda. Moved 
by Councilperson Parker and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Goodman and James 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

The vote was taken to approve the agenda with amendment. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford and Goodman 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Consent Agenda 
22-97 Resolution to approve the consent agenda for March 29, 2022. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

1 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

Whereas, the City Council has reviewed the consent agenda for March 29, 2022. 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the City Council approves the consent agenda for March 29, 2022 
including the March 22, 2022 Meeting Minutes. 

Ayes: Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Special Presentations 
Motion to postpone Special Presentation A (Oaldand County Emerging Initiatives 

Benefiting Pontiac) for one week. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson 
Goodman. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Nicholson 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

National Association of Black Woman in Construction 
Presentation Presenters: National Vice President Tylene Henry; Chapter President Jolika Dumas; Chapter 
Vice President Regina Campbell; Chapter Vice President Beverly Beard 

Recognition of Elected Officials - None 

Agenda Address 
1. Claudia Filler 
2. Gloria Miller 

Discussion 
1. Pontiac's Atts Commission Mayoral Appointments 
2. Violent Crime Prevention Strategies 
3. Roadside BBQ & Food Trucks (agenda add-on) 

Agenda Items 
Ordinance 

Motion to amend language to the City of Pontiac General Employees' Retirement 
System to Clarify Asset Distribution of the Excess upon Termination. Moved by Councilperson 
James and second by Councilperson Nicholson. 

Ayes: Rutherford, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson and Parker 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

2391 An Ordinance to amend the City of Pontiac General Employees' Retirement System 
to Clarify Asset Distribution of the Excess upon Termination with amendment. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson James. 

2 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

Ordinance No. 2391 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC GENERAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 
SYSTEM TO CLARIFY ASSET DISTRIBUTION OF THE EXCESS ASSETS UPON TERMINATION. 

The City of Pontiac ordains: 

Section 1. Amendments. 

That the City of Pontiac General Employees' Retirement System ("GERS") is hereby amended as 
follows: 

a. 
follows: 

Section 2. 

Paragraph (b) of Section 3 6A [92-46A] of the GERS is amended in its entirety to read as 

(b) The Excess Assets resulting from erroneous actuarial computation shall 
be transferred as follows: 

(i) $8,000,000.00 shall be transferred to an account 
established by the City for the purpose of holding funds which shall be 
utilized to make the one-time payments described in and required by 
Section 11 of the Settlement Agreement. 

(ii) i1Jo~1jiicd by g~;11_grnpl1:-, CD ,1hovc ,1,1d (iii) 
hclt)\V.-i:!he F\>!HH-~H+ag-Excess Assets shall be transferred to a voluntary 
employees' beneficiary association under Code §501(c)(9) (that has 
received a favorable determination letter as to the tax-exempt status of 
such trust under Code section 501(c)(9)) established or to be established 
by the City to fund retiree health benefits for certain City retirees that are 
subject to the Settlement Agreement. 

(iiiL~Ilic F<'.xce::;J;_.L\~'csets si1all_bc; u·a_ii.-, lcrred on Marcli_J L 
aI1 a,;e:_ot111t for the purpos(; (l/'lwldi,11.i funds itJi-\',Crow 1I11t ii t lie 

( 'ilv _CPRI::\. awi tlw Jfo;ird_ ·-- _________ \Vrj1ing a·, to thclinai ,iliucatinn 
i ht:rc,)J,_J[ti11.:.( ii)l,_,,J)RI' and il1L>lk,:,1:d d{l ~,o ________ -- M,1y l i .. 

!i1c11_~;(~di(,n2.4 01· tlw Sci1lc1m:nt ;\iH:;,·nwnt wiJlbc 11tili;;.cd. if 
ii !'rcr !('ilS()Jta[l!c .. ell have llCCII nwck . the nwd iat ion h,!'.i __ not 
SU(~t:ccdcd,_(;'jtCh pany tu ilic ~;c1tlen1c11t 1\gn;c111c11I )li!iYJ)l'<)Cccd as it 
dg9;}1::,:1w~@vriat (1, · 1 he account sl1,di llc_contr,ll kdjoin, ly b_y lhe C'i1y 
andDPJ{Ei\_and the funds -,hall rc11rni11i11vcskd in asimilrn·nwnncrw; 
inh:Sli}(i priur to iii 

Severability. 

If any section, or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be unconstitutional, void, illegal, or 
ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, clause or provision declared to be 
unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the remainder of the 
Ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 

3 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

Section 3. Repealer. 
All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary 
to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

Section 5. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective 10 days after adoption by the City Council. 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City Council of the City 
of Pontiac at a regular Council Meeting held in the City Council Chambers in said City on the 29 day of 
March 2022. 

Resolutions 
City Council 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker and Rutherford 
No:None 
Ordinance Passed 

22-98 Resolution Proclaiming April 2-8, 2022 as the Week of the Young Child in Pontiac. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

Whereas the City of Pontiac, Michigan has a considerable population of young children who reside in our 
community and are being raised in our neighborhoods; 
Whereas every young child in our community deserves to be safe, healthy, nurtured, and enriched, and to 
develop cherished memories of growing up in Pontiac; 
Whereas social-emotional competence of young children is a key indicator to later school success, with 
professionals playing a crucial role in reducing stress and improving mental health and wellbeing; 
Whereas the future of our great City of Pontiac, and the future of all our neighboring cities, depends on the 
quality of life we provide to Michigan's young children today; 
Whereas the Southeastern Chapter of the Michigan Association for the Education of Young Children 
(Michigan AEYC), in conjunction with the National Association for the Education of Young Children 
(NAEYC), is celebrating the Week of the Young Child™ from April 2-8, 2022; now, therefore be it 
Resolved, the Pontiac City Council, in partnership with Pontiac Mayor Tim Greimel, hereby proclaims 
April 2-8, 2022 as the Week of the Young Child™ in the City of Pontiac, Michigan; and further 
Resolved, the City Council expresses our gratitude to those organizations, professionals, caregivers, and 
advocates who are focused on the needs and wellbeing of our community's young children; and further 
Resolved, the City Council calls upon the State of Michigan to further prioritize high-quality early 
childhood learning and development for all young children when making resource decisions, as their 
funding is crucial to young children's futures and to the prosperity of our society. 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker and Rutherford 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

22-99 Resolution Celebrating the Legacy of Demetra Leonard. Moved by Councilperson 
Rutherford and second by Councilperson Nicholson. 

Whereas the month of March is National Women's History Month, which recognizes and spreads awareness 
of the importance of women in the history of the United States; 

4 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

Whereas many notable, strong women have helped shape our Pontiac community for the better through the 
decades; 
Whereas Ms. Demetra Harris Leonard was a pioneering female entrepreneur in Pontiac for 64 years, a 
strong matriarch of a prominent Pontiac family, and spent many decades giving back to the community; 
Whereas Ms. Leonard was the first Black surgical technician hired at Pontiac General Hospital in 1954, 
after her graduation from the Highland Park nursing program; 
Whereas Ms. Leonard and her husband Charles Leonard owned "Leonard's Dairy Delight" near Ditmar 
and Franklin in Pontiac from 1959 to 1968, and owned J & L Party Store on the comer of Luther and 
Franklin along with Mr. Marvin Jackson for ten years; 
Whereas in 1974 the Leonard family became the operators of Phoenix Residential Services, Incorporated, 
which was started by Ms. Leonard's mother Mary E. Harris, employing many people for decades and is 
still in operation to this day; 
Whereas Mr. and Ms. Leonard founded the Charles & Demetra Leonard Foundation to financially support 
youth in Pontiac and beyond to assist with their college tuition and college expenses, expanding opportunity 
for so many in our community; 
Whereas Ms. Leonard was an active community leader in many organizations, and was a faithful member 
of Trinity Missionary Baptist Church in Pontiac; 
Whereas Ms. Leonard passed away on November 18, 2021, which is a tremendous loss to her family and 
to the entire Pontiac community; 
Whereas the Pontiac City Council at our March 1, 2022 Council Meeting formally declared March 2022 as 
Women's History Month in the City of Pontiac, Michigan; now, 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City. Council, in partnership with City of Pontiac Mayor Tim 
Greimel, hereby celebrates the legacy and achievements of Ms. Demetra Harris Leonard; and further 
Resolved, the City Council honors the contributions and sacrifices Ms.Leonard made to uplift other Pontiac 
residents, inspire other women, and help others in need throughout our community; and further 
Resolved, the City Council extends our condolences on her recent passing to her family, friends, neighbors, 
and colleagues. 

Mayor's Office 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, and Goodman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

22-100 Resolution to approve the Medical Marihuana Commission Rules. Moved by 
Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson Nicholson. 

Whereas, the Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission adopted its Rules and Regulations on March 28, 
2022;and 
Whereas, Pontiac ordinance 2357 (B) requires the City Council to also approve those Rules and 
Regulations; 
Now, Therefore, the Pontiac City Council approves the Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and 
regulations as adopted by that Commission on March 28, 2022. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Goodman and James 
No: None 
Abstain: Rutherford 
Resolution Passed 

Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations are attached as Exhibit A 

5 



March 29, 2022 Draft 

22-101 Resolution to approve contract with Revize for the Redesign of the City's Website. 
Moved by Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac website is out of date and difficult to navigate, and, 
WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac website is not optimized for maintenance by city staff, and, 
WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac completed an RFP process to which Revize was the most responsive 
bidder, 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign enter 
into a contract with Revize for $12,900 to update the City of Pontiac website and $4,400 for annual hosting 
and supp01t. 

Ayes: Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Public Comment 
Eight (8) individuals address the body during public comment 

1. Quincy Stewart 
2. Kenny Anderson 
3. Bill Maxey 
4. Gloria Miller 
5. Melissa Spearing 
6. Larry Jasper 
7. James Sabich 
8. Billie Swazer 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Greimel, Councilwoman Rutherford, Councilman Nicholson, Councilman Goodman, 
Councilwoman James, Councilman Parker and Council President McGuinness made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Councilperson Parker and second by 

Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Nicholson 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourned the meeting at 8:54 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

6 



Exhibit A 

Medical Marihuana Commission 
Commission Members 
Robert Ford, Jr. 
Chuck Johnson 
Yauna Shepherd 
Adam Scott Turner 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone (248) 758-3200 
Fax (248) 758-3160 
www.pontiac.mi.us 

Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations 

Commission Membership Requirements 

Members of the Commission shall be residents of the City of Pontiac and shall be chosen so far as reasonably 
practicable in such a manner as to represent a cross-section of the community. 

Commission Powers and Duties 

The Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to 
Ordinance 2357(B). The Commission shall review all appeals de novo. The Commission may overturn a 
decision or finding of the City Clerk if it finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not 
supported by material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the City Clerk in 
arriving at such decision or finding. 

Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 

At its first meeting, the Commission shall select, by majority vote, a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and 
Secretary. 

Presiding Officer 

The Presiding Officer shall be responsible for enforcing these Rules and Regulations and for enforcing 
orderly conduct at meetings. The Chairperson shall be the Presiding Officer. If the Chairperson is absent, 
the Vice Chairperson shall act as the Presiding Officer. The Secretary is responsible for taking attendance 
at each meeting. In the event that the Secretary is absent, then the commission clerk shall take attendance. 
In the event of a resignation or other pennanent absence of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Secretary 
positions, it shall be filled by nomination and majority vote of the Commission members serving. 

Commission Clerk 

The City Clerk or his/her designee shall be the Clerk of the Medical Marihuana Commission. The duties of 
the Commission Clerk are as follows: 

1. The Commission Clerk shall prepare the agenda for meetings of the commission. 

2. The Commission Clerk will call the roll for all votes of the Commission and record each 
members vote. 

3. The Commission Clerk shall be responsible for keeping a record of all of the Commission's 
activity. 



4. The Commission Clerk shall be responsible for maintaining the minutes of Commission 
meetings. 

5. The Commission Clerk shall file the approved minutes of each Commission meeting in the 
office of the City Clerk. 

6. The Commission Clerk shall cooperate and assist the City Freedom of Information Act officer 
in responding to requests for information in accordance with the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act, being 1977 PA 442 as amended; MCL 15.231 et. seq. 

Meeting Schedule 

The Commission shall post a meeting notice in a manner consistent with the Michigan Open Meetings Act 
of 1976 subsequent to receiving an appeal forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to City Ordinance 
2357(B). Due to the timing irregularity of the receipt of appeals, the Commission may not schedule Regular 
Meetings as set forth in the Michigan Open Meetings Act, Michigan Public Act 267 of 1976, at MCL 
15 .265. Meeting notices must be posted at least 18 hours prior to the meeting. If the Commission does adopt 
a regular meeting schedule, it shall be posted in a manner consistent with MCL 15.265. 

Minutes of meetings 

Minutes of all meetings of the Commission shall be kept in a manner consistent with applicable law. A 
copy of the minutes of meetings shall be available for public inspection at the City Clerk's Office during 
regular business hours. 

Conduct of meetings 

All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public except as permitted by applicable law. All open 
meetings shall be open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television and photographic 
services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere with the orderly conduct of the 
meetings. 

Commission meeting agenda 

Meeting agendas will be as follows: 

1. Call to order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Authorization to Excuse Commissioners 

4. Amendments to and approve of the agenda 

5. Approval of the Minutes (As needed) 

6. Agenda Items 

7. Public Comment (3 Minute Limit) 

8. Adjournment 



Quorum 

A quorum of the Medical Marihuana Commission shall consist of three (3) members. 

Disorderly conduct 

The Presiding Officer may call to order any person who is being disorderly by speaking out of order or 
otherwise disrupting the proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or 
speaking vulgarities. Such person shall be seated until the Presiding Officer determines the person is in 
order. 

Closed sessions 

Closed sessions may be held only for the reasons consistent with MCL 15.268. 

Calling closed sessions 

The Commission by a two-thirds roll call vote may call a closed session subject to the conditions herein. 
The roll call vote and purpose(s) for calling the closed meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the 
public part of the meeting at which the vote is taken. 

Minutes of closed meetings 

A separate set of minutes shall be taken at the closed session. These minutes will be retained by the City 
Clerk and shall not be available to the public. 

Discussion and voting 

Rules of parliamentary procedure 

The rules of parliamentary practice, as contained in the 11 th edition of Robert's Rules of Order, shall 
govern the commission in all cases to which they are applicable, provided they are not in conflict with 
these rules, city ordinances or applicable state statutes. The Presiding Officer shall preserve order and 
decorum and may speak to points of order in preference to other members. If a point of order is given it 
should not exceed two (2) minutes. 

Conduct of discussion 

During the commission discussion and debate, no member shall speak until recognized for that purpose 
by the Presiding Officer. After such recognition, the member shall confine discussion to the question at 
hand and to its merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or privilege raised by another 
member. Speakers should address their remarks to the chair, maintain a courteous tone and avoid 
interjecting a personal note into debate. 

Voting shall be recorded by roll call. 

All members of the Commission in attendance shall vote on all matters unless recused. 



Public comment 

Each meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for public comment participation. During public 
comment, each individual shall be limited to three (3) minutes, and shall not engage in conduct or language 
that disrupts, makes fun of, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. In addition, members 
of the audience shall not engage in disorderly or boisterous activity including but not limited to; the 
utterance of loud, obnoxious, threatening, or abusive language, cheering, whistling, or any other acts that 
disturb, disrupt, or impede, or otherwise interfere with the orderly conduct of the meeting. 

Suspension of rules 

The rules of the Commission may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by an affirmative vote 
of two-thirds of the members present except that commission actions shall conform to applicable law. 

Adoption of Rules 

After approval by the Commission, the rules shall then be submitted to the City Clerk for transmission 
to the City Council. The rules shall be effective after the City Council approves them. 

The rules were adopted by the Commission on March 28, 2022. 





CONSENT 
AGENDA 

B 



Pontiac City Council 
Parks, Recreation & Public Works Subcommittee 

Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2022 

Meeting held at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 
in the City Council Conference Room. 

In attendance: 

Council members: Chair Kathalee James, Mikal Goodman and Melanie Rutherford 
Mayor: Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor: Khalfani Stephens 
DPW Interim Director: Al Cooley 
Planning & Development Manager: Vern Gustafsson 
Grant Writer: Alexandra Borngesser 
Oakland County Senior Planner: Kristen Wiltfang 
Members of the Public: Anisha Hannah, David Monroe and Kent Baker 
Legislative Counsel: Monique Sharpe 

The meeting started at 12:00 p.m. 

1. SPECIAL PRESENTATION - Update on DNR Mitigation Efforts, Kristen Wiltfang 

2. SPECIAL PRESENTATION -Pontiac United-T-Ball Program@Beaudette,Jaycee 
Parks, David Monroe, Kaino Phillips 

3. GRANTS UPDATE 

4. CITYWIDE CLEANUP UPDATES 

5. PARKS AND RECREATION STAFFING AND PROGRAMMING STATUS 

6. PUBLIC WORI<S ADDITIONAL UPDATES 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT: Request for public comment from Kent Baker. 

The meeting adjourned at 1:08 p.m. 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

C 



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
LAW & THE COURTS SUBCOMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES - MARCH 28, 2022 

Meeting held at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 
in the City Council Conference Room. 

In Attendance: 
Council members: Chair William Parker Jr., Brett Nicholson and Melanie Rutherford 
Chief Judge 50th District Court: Cynthia Walker 
Mayor: Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor: Khalfani Stephens 
Court Administrator: Lynette Ward 
MIDC Executive: Ashley Johnson 
Assigned Council: Paulette Loftin 
Prosecutor's Office Racial Justice Advisory Council: Stephanie Crider 
Code Enforcement Officer: Tami Cooper 
Planning & Development Manager: Vern Gustafsson 

The meeting started at 4:00 p.m. 

I. New Business 

A. 50TH District Court- MIDC Presentation and Discussion by Chief Judge Cynthia 
Wallcer 

B. Blight Court- Presentation Tami Cooper 

C. Oakland County Prosecutor's Office - Second Chances Expungement, Violence 
Prevention, Racial Justice Advisory Council (RJAC) and an Expungement Event on 
April 30, 2022 - Presentation and Discussion 

II. Standing Updates 

III. Items for Future Consideration by the Subcommittee 

Public Comment: No request for public comment at the meeting. 

*Next Meeting: Monday, April 25th, 2022 at 4pm in the City Council Conference Room. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:28 p.m. 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

D 



March 26, 2022 Special Meeting Draft 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

13 th Session of the Eleventh Council 

Call to order 
A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Saturday, March 26, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. by 
Council President Mike McGuinness. 

Roll Call 

Members Present - Mikal Goodman, Mike McGuinness, Brett Nicholson, William Parker Jr., and 
Melanie Rutherford 

Mayor Greimel was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
Motion to excuse Councilperson Kathalee James and Williams Carrington for 

personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Nicholson. 

Ayes: Goodman, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker and Rutherford 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford and Goodman 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Recognition of Elected Officials -None 

Agenda Address - None 

Councilwoman Kathalee James arrived at 11 :04 a.m. 

Discussions 
Submitting Anti-Harassment Signed Acknowledgement 
Zoning Board of Appeals Vacancies Process 
Needs for Strengthening Subcommittees 
Needs for Office Operations or Supplies 
Expanding Council Staff Capacity 
District Projects Progress and Feasibility Questions 

Public Comment 
One (1) individual addressed the body during public comment. 

1. Marilyn Mahone 

1 



March 26, 2022 Special Meeting Draft 

Closing Comments - None 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Councilperson Nicholson and second by 

Councilperson Rutherford. 

Ayes: McGuiness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Goodman and James 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourned the meeting at 1 :23 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

2 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

E 



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
COMMUNICATIONS, ENGAGEMENT & OPERATIONS 

SUBCOMMITTEE MINUTES 

Meeting held at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan in the 
City Council Conference Room. 

March 25, 2022 Meeting 

Meeting started at 4:06 p.m. 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chair Mikal Goodman, President Michael McGuinness and William Parker,Jr. 
Deputy Mayor: Khalfani Stephens 
Cable Director: Philip Brown 
IT: Ken Martin and Frank Antoun 
Public: Community member Regina Campbell was present 
Legislative Counsel: Monique Sharpe 

New Business: 

• Website RFP Updates 

Standing Updates: 

• 
• 
• 
• 

Cable Department Updates 
I.T. Updates 
City Communications, Branding and Marketing Updates 
Internal Council Operations 

Items for Future Consideration by the Subcommittee were discussed. 

Public Comment: Opportunity for Public Comment Offered. No Requests for Public 
Comment. 

Next Meeting: Friday, April 29th, 2022. 4 to 5 pm. City Council Conference Room. 

Meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m. 



#1 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Council President Mike McGuinness and Members of the City Council 

Phil Brown, Cable Director 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens, and Darin Carrington, Finance 
Director 

April 5, 2022 

Extension of Media Specialist Memorandum of Understanding Agreement 

Honorable Council President and Members of the City Council: 

On December 30th 2021, Tajhmahal Robinson and the City of Pontiac entered into an 
agreement. The agreement stated the city of Pontiac would compensate Tajhmahal Robinson 
as a contractor for services rendered to the city's cable department. The agreed compensation 
for services provided was at an hourly rate of $20.00, not to exceed $10,000. As of today, the 
services under this agreement are complete. 

As such, the cable department is requesting an extension of Tajhmahal Robinson's contract 
through the end of the 2021-22 fiscal year. 

The services Tajhmahal Robinson provides to the cable department as a contractor is 
equivalent to the role of a media specialist. 

The media specialist provides assistance to the cable director and supports our city's cable 
channel. Some of the duties the media specialist is responsible for are as follows: 

• Edit videos 
• Edit photos 
• Setups and breakdowns of meetings 
• Assist in Scheduling 
• Backups to system 
• And more 

The media specialist contractor is essential to the Pontiac cable system. 
The funds will come from GL 231-291-818-000 Cable Fund - other professional services. 

Attachments 



Resolution to Extend the Media Specialist Contractual Agreement Through the 
End of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

WHEREAS, On December 30, 2021, the City of Pontiac entered into a memorandum of 
understanding agreement with Taijhmahal Robinson to provide support to 
the city's cable department as a media specialist; and 

WHEREAS, The agreement stated the City of Pontiac would pay Taijmahal Robinson 
for services provided to the Cable Department as a Media Specialist at an 
hourly rate of $20.00 per hour, not to exceed $10,000. As of today, the 
agreed amount not to exceed $10,000 has been reached; and 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac Cable Department is requesting an extension of Taijmahal 
Robinson's contract through the end of the fiscal year 2021-22; and 

WHEREAS, The funds to support the contract extension would come from the cable's 
other professional services fund, GL account 231-291-818-000. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City Council authorizes the extension of the 
media specialist contractual agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Taijmahal Robinson for the remaining fiscal year 2021-22 at an hourly rate 
of $20.00 per hour; not to exceed $10,000. 



MEMORANDllM OF UN0l1:RSTANDIN(; 

This t'vlcu1ma11du1n ol l l11dnstm1ding ("fV!Ol !'') is lo sl'I l<lrlh the tcrllls ol' :1gn;cn1cnl between 

T,~ihmahal H.obinson, an indcpL:1Hknt contractor lm:;1lt'cl at 70'"i0(> ( 'ardoni Street I klroit Ml /48203; 
and the City ol' Po11tiac, a 1vlichig:lll iVl1111icip;il ('uqH>rnlion locntt:d :ti 474.50 W<Hl(l\vmd !\vc1111l:, 
Pontiac, Michigan, 4W~42. ("('!TY"); l'1>llcl'livcly the "Pnrlil:s". 

1. Na tun· and Sl'ope of Sen ices. ]11 till: course of pe1fonning scrvict:s u11dcr this M( Jl J, the 
Parl ies agree: 

111 Taj hnwlial Rohins1111 wi II Jk'il<irtn sci vices as :m independent contractor and 
rn11sisk11I with th\lSl' lll' :i Media Specialist, and al 1hc direction of lhL: fvh1yor/ Phil 
nn l\'vl), 

1 
Fl'l's, I ht'. ( Tl Y agrees to pay lajlirnahal Robinson at a rate of $20 per hour v,ith a total 
not lo L~Xl'Cl'd $1 ll.000.00 

3. Responsibility for Own Ads and Omissions, Both Parties agree tu be h:g:illy and 
financially rc~po11sibk for their owu actions including those of lheir employees, 
J\~pn·srntatiws nnd agrnls. and will indeinnil)' and hold each other harmless frlr the act~; or 
omissions of themselves, incl11di1w. their employees, rcprescntntives m1J agents, in the 
performance or this MOU. 

4. r;overning Law and Disputes. This MOU will be governed by and construed in 
al'cord;mce with tile laws of the State or iv1ichigan. Any comt or competent jurisdiction 
lnculed in the State of Michigan slrnll have jurisdiction for any llisputcs arising herein 
1 mder. 

'.:J. Amendment. This iVIOlJ 11rny 011ly be moclillcd by nrntual assent nfthc1 parties in writing 
a11d exec11\cd hy the Pm lies. 

(>. Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Parlics shall comply with all applicahk laws in 
,ill a<,p1:ch uf'llic pcrfomiancl'. nf this MOU. 

ClTY OF PONTIAC 

-~4tYt17t;;;\,,~:~ 
rvtA YOH DEIJU)JH; WATERivlAN 

DATE: 



#2 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

THROUGH: Mayor Tim Greimel 

DATE: 

RE: 

April 5, 2022 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing to Establish an 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for Parcel Number 64-
14-30-453-001 for Micah 6 Community, LLC project Webster 
Community Center, located at 640 W. Huron Street 

Micah 6 Community, LLC is requesting the City of Pontiac establish an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation District on parcel 64-14-30-453-001, located at 640 W. Huron in the City of 
Pontiac. The process to establish an obsolete property rehabilitation district is detailed in 
the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000 as amended. Prior to approval 
of establishing the district, a Public Hearing is required. A separate hearing and resolution 
to approve the application for an obsolete property rehabilitation exemption certificate Is 
required after approval of the district. 

Micah 6 Community, LLC is requesting tax exemption for the property at 640 W. Huron St. 
The project is an estimated $17,785,613 rehab to create the Webster Community Center 
in the previous Webster School. The 53,000 SF building on a 5 acre campus has been 
vacant since 2006. The rehabbed project will service the community, providing a base 
location for Health and Wellness, Entrepreneurship, Arts and Culture, and Youth 
Programs. The center will also home to a Pontiac Food Hub, connecting growers around 
the community with food entrepreneurs and retailers. A commercial kitchen will be 
available for rent to them as well. Plans for an indoor bus terminal are being considered 
with SMART and MOOT. 

The Webster Community Center will provide approximately 50 jobs during the 14 month 
construction period and 90 jobs from tenants in the building. Construction is projected to 
commence August 15, 2022 and be completed by October 15, 2023. 

Micah 6 Community has completed all of the requested and required documentation in 
compliance with Michigan's Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000 as 
amended and has a Certificate of Obsolescence affidavit. 

A notice for the public hearing should be posted 1 O days prior to the Public Hearing. 
l 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO ESTABLISH AN 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION DISTRICT FOR PARCEL 64--14-

30-453-001, MICAH 6 COMMUNITY, LLC PROJECT WEBSTER 
COMMUNITY CENTER. LOCATED AT 640 W. HURON STREET ON APRIL 

19,2022 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) P.A. 146 of 2000 
as amended, the City of Pontiac, by resolution may establish an obsolete property rehabilitation 
district; and 

WHEREAS, prior to establishing an obsolete property rehabilitation, written public notice 
by certified mail to the owners of all real property within the proposed obsolete property 
rehabilitation district at which any of those owners and any other resident or taxpayer in the City of 
Pontiac may appear and be heard; and 

WHEREAS, Micah 6 Community LLC ("Petitioner,,) is the owner of that certain real 
property located in the City of Pontiac and legally described below (the "Property,,); and 

WHEREAS, Petitioner is requesting establishment of an obsolete property rehabilitation 
district for parcel number 64-14-30-453-001, located at 640 W. Huron Street in Pontiac, Michigan; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac should give public notice of the hearing not less than 10 
days or more than 30 days befme the hearing as set forth in Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act 
P.A. 146 of2000 as amended, section 4(1); and 

WHEREAS, construction, acquisition> alteration, or installation of a proposed facility has 
not commenced at the time of filing the application for the obsolete pl'operty rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of 
Pontiac to schedule a public hearing to approve the application of the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation and to give notice of such hearing as prnvided in the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of2000 as amended; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac 
City Council hereby schedules a public hearing to establish an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District for parcel nurnber 64-14-30-453-001 for Webster Community Center at 640 W. Huron 
Street in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, such hearing to be held on 
Apdl 19, 2022 at 6:00 PM: 

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICIDGAN, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

2 



LOTS 34 THROUGH 61, BOTH INCLUSIVE OF RECREATON PAlU( 
ADDITIONA TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN LIDER 6 OF PLATS, PAGE 13, AND AS 
AMENDED IN LIBER 15 OF MISCELLANEOUS RECORDS, PAGE 522, 
OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS. 

J?URTHER RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac City Council 
hereby instructs the Interim Clerk to give notice of such public hearing, by certified mail, 
to all the owners of all real property within the proposed industl'ial development district 
prior to the date of the public hearing. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the City Council of Pontiac, County of Oakland, Michigan, as a ______ meeting held on 

City of Pontiac Interim Clerk 

3 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO ESTABLISH AN 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION DISTRICT FOR PARCEL 64-14-

30-453-001, MICAH 6 COMMUNITY, LLC PROJECT WEBSTER 
COMMUNITY CENTER, LOCATED AT 640 W. HURON STREET ON APRIL 

19,2022 

NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the City of Pontiac will hold a public hearing to 
establlsh an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for parcel number 64-14-30-
453-001, Micah 6 Community, LLC project Webster Community Center, located at 
640 W Huron Street in Pontiac, Michigan. 

Public Comment For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us by 
5:00 PM, April 18, 2022. Additionally, you may submit your public comment in 
writing directly to the Office of the Interim City Clerk gdoyle@pontlac.mi.us 
The hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 at 6:00 pm at City of 
Pontiac City Council Chambers, located at 47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs will be made upon 
receiving a 72-hour advance notice. Please contact Garland Doyle, Interim City 
Clerk at 248.758.3007 or via email at gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us 

Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk 
Published (Oakland Press, ____ _, 2022) 

4 



#3 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

THROUGH: Mayor Tim Greimel 

DATE: 

RE: 

April 5, 2022 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing for Approval of 
Application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption 
Certificate for Micah 6 Community, LLC project Webster 
Community Center, located at 640 W. Huron Street 

Micah 6 Community, LLC is requesting approval of their application for Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate at 640 W. Huron Street on parcel 64-14-30-453-001, 
in the City of Pontiac. The application process is detailed in the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000 as amended. Prior to approval of the application, a 
Public Hearing is required. A separate hearing and resolution to approve the obsolete 
property rehabilitation district is required prior to approving the exemption certificate. 

Micah 6 Community, LLC is requesting tax exemption for the property at 640 W. Huron St. 
The project is an estimated $17,785,613 rehab to create the Webster Community Center 
in the previous Webster School. The 53,000 SF building on a 5 acre campus has been 
vacant since 2006. The rehabbed project will service the community, providing a base 
location for Health and Wellness, Entrepreneurship, Arts and Culture, and Youth 
Programs. The center will also home to a Pontiac Food Hub, connecting growers around 
the community with food entrepreneurs and retailers. A commercial kitchen will be 
available for rent to them as well. Plans for an indoor bus terminal are being considered 
with SMART and MOOT. 

The Webster Community Center will provide approximately 50 jobs during the 14 month 
construction period and 90 jobs from tenants in the building. Construction is projected to 
commence August 15, 2022 and be completed by October 15, 2023. 

Micah 6 Community has completed all of the requested and required documentation in 
compliance with Michigan's Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000 as 
amended and has a Certificate of Obsolescence affidavit. 

A notice for the public hearing should be posted 10 days prior to the Public Hearing. 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR APPROVAL OF 
APPLCATION FOR AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION 

EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR MICAH 6 COMMUNITY, LLC PROJECT 
WEBSTER COMMUNITY CENTER, LOCATED AT 640 W. HURON STREET 

ON APRIL 19, 2022 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) P.A. 146 of 2000 
as amended, the City of Pontiac, by resolution may approve the application for an obsolete property 
rehabilitation exemption certificate; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant has completed the requirements of the checklist detailed in 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of2000 as amended; section 4(1); and 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the application for an obsolete property rehabilitation 
exemption ce1ti:ficate, th.e clerk shall notify in writing the assessor of the local tax collecting unit in 
which the obsolete facility is located and the legislative body of each taxing unit that levies ad 
valorem property taxes in the qualified local government unit in which the facility is located; and 

WHEREAS, before acting upon the application, a public hearing should be held on the 
application and give public notice of the hearing no less than 10 days or more than 30 days of the 
hearing in writing to the applicant, the assessor, a representative of the affected taxing units and the 
general public at which time shall have a right to appear and be heard as set forth in Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000 as amended, section 4(1); and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council has the authority to approve an application for an 
obsolete property rehabilitation within the City of Pontiac, specifically, parcel number 64-14-30-
453-001, located at 640 W. Huron Street in Pontiac, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, Micah 6 Community, LLC ("Petitioner") is the owner of the real property 
located in the City of Pontiac and legally described below (the "Prnperty"); and 

WHEREAS, construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of a proposed facility has 
not commenced at the time of filing the application for the obsolete property rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of 
Pontiac to schedule a public hearing to approve the application of the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation and to give notice of such hearing as provided in the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of2000 as amended; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac 
City Council hereby schedules a public hearing to approve the application for Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for Webster Community Center at 640 W. Huron Street in the 

2 



Ciiy of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, such hearing to be held on April 19, 2022 
at 6:00 PM: 

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

LOTS 34 THROUGH 61, BOTH INCLUSIVE OF RECREATON PARK 
ADDITJONA TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN LIBER 6 OF PLATS, PAGE 13, AND AS 
AMENDED IN LIBER 15 OF MISCELLANEOUS RECORDS, PAGE 522, 
OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS. 

FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac City Council 
hereby instrncts the Interim Clerk to give notice of such public hearing, by certified mail, 
to all the owners of all real property within the proposed industrial development district 
prior to the date of the public headng. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the City Council of Pontiac, County of Oakland, Michigan, as a ______ meeting held on 

City of Pontiac Interim Clerk 

3 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

APPROVAL OF APPLICATION FOR AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY 
REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR MICAH 6 COMMUNITY, 

LLC PROJECT WEBSTER COMMUNITY CENTER, LOCATED AT 640 W. 
HURON STREET ON APRIL 19, 2022 

NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the City of Pontiac will hold a public hearing to 
approve the Application for Obsoleted Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for 
Micah 6 Community, LLC project located at 640 W Huron which will be home to 
the Webster Community Center. 

Public Comment For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontlac.mi.us by 
5:00 PM, April 18, 2022. Additionally, you may submit your public comment in 
writing directly to the Office of the Interim City Clerk gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us 
The hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 at 6:00 pm at City of 
Pontiac City Council Chambers, located at 47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs will be made upon 
receiving a 72whour advance notice. Please contact Garland Doyle, Interim City 
Clerk at 248.758.3007 or via email at gdoyle@pontiac.ml.us 

Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk 
Published (Oakland Press, _____ , 2022) 

4 



Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Application Checklist 

Applicant Name: ______ //1t_/r◄_"_4 __ & _____ t;_~ __ ~ __ n...,,1'f;~y ________ _ 

GENERAL INFORMATION NEEDED FOR ALL APPLICATIONS: 

P{ Completed Department of Treasury application Form 3674. 

□ Certified copy of the resolution approving the application (must include the following statements): 
□ The district was legally established after a hearing, inclusive ofheat'ing date. 
□ Statement that the local unit is a qualified local governmental unit. 
0 SEY ofreal and personal property WILL/WILL NOT exceed 5% of ..... 
0 If exceeds 5% ... shall not have the effect of substantially impedlng or impaldng the , .. 
0 · Application was approved at a public hearing, inclusive of hearing date. 
□ Statement that the arplicant is not delinqqent in any taxes. 
□ The application for obsolete property as defined in 2(h). 
D Time period authorir.ed by LOU for construction. 
0 Answers to questions in instructions were provided, 
□ If the application is approved :for less than l2 years, the ()riteria required for extension or not. 
□ Commencement of the rehabilitation did not occur prlor to the establishment of the district. 
□ Application relates to a rehabilitation program that when completed .... 
□ Completion of the qualified facility is calculated to .•. 
□ Includes improvements aggregating 10% or more ofTCV at commencement. 

D Separate attachment (must include the answers to the following questlons): 
~- General description of the obsolete facility (year built, original use, recent use, sq. ft. & stories). 
~ Proposed use ofthe'rebabilitated facllity. · 
(0 Detailed description of the rehabilitation to be undertaken, preferably itemized lists. 
Jr Descriptive )ist 9ffixed building equipment that is patt of the rehabilitated facility. 
8' Time schedule for rehabilitation. 
6'11 Expected economic advantages from exemption. 

}(. Legal description of the obsolete property. 

I)( Contractor's bid 

D Statement of obsolescence signed by assessor of record with the STC. 

□ Building permit, if it has been issued. 

TRANSFERS ONLY: 

□ Ce1tified copy of the resolution approving the transfer. 

REVOCATIONS ONLY: 
Statutol'y Reason for Revocation: ________________________ _ 

D Ce1tified copy of the resolution approving the revocation. 

Revised Ootober2018 



Michigan Department ofTreasury 
3674 (Rev. 05·19) . 

Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate 
This form Is Issued as provided by Publio Act 146 of 2000, as amended. Thls appflcatlon should be flied after the district Is established. This project wtll 
not receive tax benefits until approval! by the State Tax Commission. Appllcatlons received after October 31 may not be acted upon In the current year. 
This appllcallon Is subJ.ect to audit by the State Tax commission. 

INSTRUCTIONS: rile the orlglnal and two copies of this form and the required attachments with the clerk of the local government unit. 
(The StateTax Commission requires two copies of the Application and attachments; The original ls retalhed by the clerk.) Please see 
State Tax Commission Bulletin 9 of 2000 for more Information about the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption. The foUowlng 
must be provided to the local government unit as attachments to this application: (a) General de scrlptlon of the obsolete facll lty (year 
llullt, orlglnal use, most recent use, number of stories, square footage); (b) General description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated 
facility, (c) Description of the general nature and extent of the rehabllltatle>n to be undertaken, (d) A descriptive list of the fixed bulldlng 
equipment that wlll be a part ofthe r ehabllltated facility, (e) A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabllltat. Ion of the 
facility, (f) A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption. A statement from the assessor of the local unit of 
government, describing the required obsolescence has been met for this bulldlng, Is required with each application. Rehabltltatlon may 
commence after establishment of district. 
Applicant (Company) Name (applicant must be lhe OWNl:R or lhe facility) 
Micah 6 Community, LLC 
Company Malling address (No. and stteet, P.O. llo><, City, state, ZIP Code) 

32 Newberry St, Pontiac, Ml 48341 
LocaHon ol obsolete facility (No. and street, City, State, ZIP Code) 

640 W. Huron Street, Ml, 48341 
City, Township, VIiiage (Indicate Which) !county 
Pontiac Oakland 
Date of Commencement of Rehabllitatlon (mrntdd/yyyy) Planned date of CompleUon of Rehablll!,!Uon S<:hool District Where faclllty I& located (include khool ¢Ode) 

08/15/2022 (mmlctdlyyyy) 10/15/2023 Pontiac 
Estimated Cost of Rehabilitation Number or years el<ernpuon requested Attach Legal description or Obsolete Prqperty on separate 
$17,785,613 12 8h&et 

Expected project llkel.lhood {check all that apply): 

~ lncre.ise Commercial activity ~ Retain employment ~ Revitalize urban areas 

@ Create employment D Prevent a loss of employment D Increase number of residents In the 
community In which the facility Is situated 

Indicate the number of jobs to be retained or created as a result of rehabllitating the facility, Including expected construcUon employment 14C 
Eac~ear, the State ireasurer may approve 25 additional reductions or hair lhe school 1JperaUng and state eduaaUon taxes for a pe~od not to exceM six years. Check the 
folio ng box If you wish to be conijldered forth!& exclu610n. □ 

APPLICANT'~ CERTIFICATION 
The undersigned, authorized officer of the. company making this appllcaUon certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledga, no lnformaUon contained 
herein or In the attachments hereto Is f~tse In any way and that all of the Information Is truly descriptive of the property for which this appt!c;allon Is being 
submitted, Further, the undersigned rs aware that, lt.eny :,t11tomc;,nt or lntonnallon provided le untrn.,, th1> e><empllon provided by PubUcAet 146 of 2000 
may be In Jeopardy. 
The 11ppllcant certifies that this appltoatlon relates to a rehabllltatlon program that, when nompleted, constitutes a r<ihabllltated faolllty, as 
defined by Public Aot 148 of 2000, aa amended, and that the rehablll(!ltion of the facfllty would not be undertaken wlth<>ut the applicant's 
receipt of the exemption c:ertlflca~e. 
It ts further certified that the undersigned Is famlllar w Ith the provisions of PObllc Aot 146 of 2000, as amendecl, of the Mich lgan Complied Laws; and to 
the best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)ha has compiled or wltl be able to comply wllh all .of the requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the 
approval of the applfcaUor\ by the local unit of government • and the Issuance of an Obsolete Property Rehabllltatton Exemption Certificate by the State 
Tax Commission. 
Name ol Company Officer (no authorized agents) I Telephone Number Fax Number 
Coleman Yoakum (248) 632-4399 
Matll~ Address !:mall Addre$$ 
32 eWberry Street Pontiac, Ml 48341 coleyoakum@gmall.com 
Signature ol Company Officer (no authorized agents) llUe 

f' p/_ Executive Director .,, . ,___..-
LOCAL/GOVERNMENT UNIT CLERK CERTIFICATION 
The Clerk must also compiete Part& 1, 2 and 4 on Page 2. Part 3 ts to be completed by the Assessor • 

rig nature . , Date appllcaUon received 

F.ORSTATETA><co MISSION lJSE.•i/. 
Date Received LUCt Code 



3674, Page 2 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION 
This section Is to be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting the application to the Stale Tax Commission. Include a copy of 
the resolution which approves the application and Instruction items (a) through (f) on page 1, and a separate statement of obsolescence from the 
assessor of record with the State Assessor's Board. All sections must be completed In order to process. 
PART 1: ACTION TAKEN 
Action Date: _____________ _ 

D Exemption Approved for ____ Years, ending December 30, ____ (not to exceed 12 years) 

D □enied 
Oale Dlstrfcl Eslabllshed !LUCI Code !School Code 

PART 2: RESOLUTIONS (the followlrlg statements mu$t be Included In resolutions approving) 

A statement that the local unit Is a Qualified Local Governmental Unit. 
A statement that the O bsolete Property Rehabllltatlon District was 
legally established Including the date established and the date of 
hearing as provided by section 3 of Public Act 146 of 2000. 

A statement Indicating w hether the taxable viilue of the property 
proposed to be exempt plus the aggregate taxable value of property 
already exempt under Public Act 146 of 2000 end under Public Act 198 
of 1974 (IFT's) exceeds 5% of the total taxable value of the unit. 
A statement of the factors, criteria and obJecUves, If any, necessary for 
extending the exemption, when the certificate Is for less than 12 year$. 
A statement that a public hearing was held on the application as 
provided by section 4(2) of Public Act 146 of 2000 Including the date of 
the hearing. 
A statement that the appllcant Is not delinquent fn any taxes related to 
the factllty. 
If it exceeds 5% (see above), a $\atement that ex ceading 5% wilt not 
have the effe<;t of substantially impeding the operation of the Qualified 
Local Governmental Unit or of Impairing the financial soundness of an 
affected taxing unit. 
A statement that all of the Items described under "Instructions" (a) 
through (f) of Iha Application tor Obsolete Property Rehabllltatlon 
Exemption Certificate have been provided to the Qualified Local 
Governmental Unit by the applicant. 

PART 3: ASSESSOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

A statement that the application Is for obsolete property as defined In 
section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000. 
A statement that the commencement of the rehab\lltatton of the facllily 
did not oc;cur before the establishment of the Obsolete Property 
Rehabli!falion District, 
A statement that the appllcaUon relates to a rehabilitation program that 
when completed constitutes a rehabllitated facility within the meaning 
of Public Act 146 of 2000 and that lseltuated w !thin an Obsolete 
Property Rehabllltallon Dlstriot established In a Q uallfled Local 
Governmental Unit ellglble under Publlo Act 146 of 2000 to est;iblleh 
such a district. 
A statement that completion of the rehabilitated facility Is calculated to, 
and Will at the time or Issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable 
likelihood to, Increase commercial acllvity, create emptoymel)t, retain 
employment, prevent a loss of employ ment, revitalize urban areas, or 
Increase the number of residents In the community In which the faclllty 
Is sltqated. The statement shoul d Indicate which of these the 
rehabllltatton ts likely lo result In. 
A statement that the rehabll'rtatlon Includes Improvements aggregating 
10% or more of the true cash value of the property at commencement 
of the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(1) of Public Act 146 of 
2000. 
A statement of the period of .time authorized by the Quallfled Local 
Governmental Unit for completion of the rehabllitatlon. 

Provide the Taxable Value and Stale Equalized Value of the Obsolete Property, as provided In Publlo Act 146 of :2000, es amended, for the tax year 
lrnmedlately'precedtng the effective date of the certificate (December 31st of the year approved by the STC). 

Taxable Value State Equalized Value (SEV) 

Buildlng(s) I 
Name of Governmental Unit Date or Action on applleaUon I Date of Statement of Obsofesi:ence 

PART 4: CLERK CERTIFICATION 
The undersigned clerk certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, no Information contained herein or ln the attachments hereto Is false In any way. 
Further, the undersigned Is aware that If any Information provided Is untrue, the exemplfon provided by Public Act 146 of 2000 may be In Jeopardy. 
Name of Clerk Clerk Slgnatme Date 

Clerk's Malllng AddreS$ City Stale 121P Code 

Telephone Number I Fax Number I Emal! Address 

Mall completed appllcatlon and attachments to: Michigan Department ofTreasury 
State Tax Commission 
P.O. Box 30471 
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7971 

If you have any questions, caU 517-335-7491. 

For guaranteed receipt by the State Tax Commlselon, It Is recommended that applications and attachments are sent by certified mall. 



A) General Description of the obsolete facility [Year Built, Orlglnal Use, Most 
Recent Use, Number of Stories, Square Footage]: 

The facility was ortglnally built In 1920 and opened In 1921 by the Pontiac 
School District with 19 classrooms and was expanded to 26 classrooms in the 
1950's, The school was used as Webster Elementary School until 2007 when 
It was closed permanently, Since then It has set vacant and has experienced 
signlfic~mt deterioration and ls In blighted condition. Total square footage Is 
approximately 52,616. The bulldlng Is one story except for the 1,409 square 
foot administrative offices located on a second floor overlooking Huron 
Street, 

B) General Description of the Proposed Use of the Rehabilitated Facility: 

Proposed rehabllltation will be a mixed-use facility comprised of cornmerclal 
and retall space. It ~Ill Include a business incubator, commercial kitchen, 
stage for performing arts, gymnasium for community use and performances, 
office space, and retail space. Most of the organizations leasing space will be 
providing community services such as health care, child care services, arts 
programing, athletic programming, and food services to low-Income 
residents. 

C) Description of the General Nature and Extent of the Rehabllltatlon to be 
Undertaken: 

The renovation will be a total building overhaul to cure functional 
obsolescence and blight. This work will transform the building Into a modern 
fully functional space. Renovation will be according to the Secretary of 
Interior's Standards for Historic Preservation so the historic Integrity of the 
building wlll be maintained. Renovation wiU Include new roof work, new 
windows, fag~de work, handicap accessibility, new plumbing, electrical, 
water, lighting, and Interior finishes. · 

D) A Descriptive List of Fixed Building Equipment as Part of the Rehabllltated 
Faclllty 

Kitchen equipment will be Installed Including vent hoods, walk In coolers and 
freezers, and countertops. Stage equipment WIii be installed to 
accomm'odate performing arts activities. Stage equipment will Include sound 
management and speakers, lighting and lighting controls, and curtains. 

E) A Time Schedule for Undertaking and Completing the Rehabllltatlon of the 
Facility 

Design and architectural work will be completed In May 2022, Construction 
activities are anticipated to begin August 15, 2022 and completion Is 
expected by October of 2023. 



F) A Statement of the Economic Advantages Expected from the Exemption 

The project Is located on the busy M"59 commercial corridor with residential 
housing behind the bull ding. It ls a critical building in this location of the 
community because of Its unique architecture, large visual scale, and its 
contribution to the neighborhood. Its size and scale are significant enough 
that Its current state of blight and deterioration has had a negative effect on 
the whole neighborhood. The courtyard has been used by drug offenders 
and a burned car with a murder victim was found In the back"parklng lot over 
a year ago; the building's state has gone beyond an attractive nuisance. 

Therefore, renovation of this bulldlng will make a dramatic Improvement for 
this community. The use as the Webster Community Center will provide 
integrative programming that will stimulate commercial and residential 
revltalizatlon. The new car and foot traffic at the site, along with community 
services provided In the building WIii restore It to a positive centerpiece of the 
neighborhood as It was when It operated as an elementary school. 

Restoration will also improve the sense of place and walkabllity in this 
neighborhood. This area as whole Will become more an attraction for 
positive community Interaction through its community gardens, food service 
programs, arts, recreation, health, and programs for children, rhe potential 
for the building to remain vacant for a number of years would have the 
opposite effect. Filty jobs created during the 14-month construction period 
will provide opportunities for employment and help local eateries and other 
businesses. An estimated 90 jobs from a variety of tenants will provide new 
customers to local businesses and will encourage the establishments of new 
enterprises at nearby locations. The business Incubator will also create new 
jobs and ultimately create additional businesses that will spin off and move 
Into new locations. These activities Improve one of the most Important 
factors In healthy communitles ... feet on the street. Neighbors coming and 
going to utilize services, as well as commercial tenants In the building, during 
the day, evenings, and on weekends will Improve the amount of foot trafflG 
which adds to the vibrancy and sense of safety in the neighborhood. Due to 
the Iconic nature of this building, combined with the activities above, Its total 
restoration will stimulate new investment in surrounding properties thus 
Increasing neighboring property values and creating addltlonal jobs. 

Legal description of Obsolete Properq 

Land situated In the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, 
described as follows: · 

Lots 34 through 61, both inclusive, of RECREATION PARK ADDITION ro THE CliY 
OF PONTIAC, according to the plat thereof as recorded In Uber 6 of Plats, page 13, 



and as amended In Uber 15 of Miscellaneous Records, page 522, of Oakland County 
Records, 



AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
CITY OF' PONTIAC) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

NOW COME Interim Assessor Terry Schultz, MMAO (4) and Jane T. Walsh, MAAO (3) of Oakland County Equalization, 
both being first duly swom, depose and stale as follows; 

I, Terry Schultz, am lhe Interim Assessor for the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan and make this affidavit in 
conjunction wllh an application under the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act. (OPRA), PA 146 of 2000, as amended, for a 
commercial building and land Improvements located at 640 W Huron Street, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan. 
The related p<;1rcel identified as follows: Parcel No. 64-14-30-453-001 

I, Jane Walsh MAAO (3), did on March 18, 2022, inspect the above referenced parcel In the City of Pontiac and issue the 
following opinion: 

It Is my expert opinion that the commercial office building found on the apove referenced property Is functionally obsolete as 
denned In MCL 125.2652 of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, PA 381 of 1996, as amended. !3ased on the 
functional lnutlllly, which Is defined as an Impairment of the functional utility of a property or building according to market tastes 
and standards; equivalent to functional obsolescence because ongoing change makes the plan, form, style, design, layouts, or 
features obsolete. (Appraisal lnslitute's Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal Fifth Edition). 

The building was once a one-story elementary school built in the 1920's which closed permanently in 2007. The structure has 
sustained extensive deferred maintenance over the last decade. The Interior of the building has no funqtloning mechanicals 
with extreme damage to walls, flooring, ceilings, windows, and doors. The basement currently has standing water throughout. 
Asphalt paving shows damage due to weathering and neglect. 

In th.e opinion of the Assessor, because of the extreme interior deficiencies along with need for Intensive remediation, the 
property suffers more than 50% functional obsolescence. 

I, Terry Schultz, after Inquiry and review of the findings of Jane Walsh, as well as review of records of the City of Pontiac 
related to this property find the above property functionally obsolete. 

Further deponents sayeth not. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
This Q V.51' day of Mf rch 2022 

~~th,~~ '·[\e'-'H~l\•,\)j(f\ 
N tary Pub le 

Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Explres:•j ·\LJ -~Y~5-
Actlng in the County of Oakland 

Terry Schultz 

~tel~ 
Jane T. Walsh 



~OFs;:, 

~~'-~4') .. =~;. .N . - ;-£\ I - n: ,, , (J-J. Q 

'\~l.~::Z ·~ ~· \":.t ·.:' l(l(.2 ◊ 

~~~ ~ 
'~ " A 

ebster Comm unity Center 
for Micah·6, LLr 



Micah 6--- ebster 
II ommun,1 enter 

Micah 6 Community1 LLC is a 501 (c) {3) community development 
corporation established in 2012. 

Their mission ls to provide services increasing accessto healthy food, 
improving the quality of housing and providing enrichment opportunities 
to local Pontiac youth. 

Micah 6 currently own.sthreeproperties:ln Pontlacandhas·911111pJ6yees; 
2Jull.~tirne.and 7·pttrt~titne ,·. ·' ·, ,, , '. -, , 

. In 202.1, they had an. operatlngfititlgef of i:t,2rJi mbstr'/frron¾· cornrlltmrry .. · 
foundations, donors, grant support and faith b~secl.organiZations . 

. ··~-.,.,.,...-·~· ,, .. _, ____ ~•-•-~·-~- .,-,,--~,-~~-~-• 



ebster Community Center 

Micah 6 purchased the old Webster SchooLthat had closed since 2006 on a 
land contract in 2016. The balance was forgiven in 2dl8. 

.. . 
' . 

Webster School, when renovated1 wH I be the home for the Webster 
Community Center. ltis located at640 W. Huron Street in Pontiac. The 
53,000SF sits ona 5 acre campus andta.kesup an entire. block. 

Webster Community tenterwHI housethe.PontiacFo<)d Hub; connecting 
food growers, entrepren(pursand retailers. ltwlll have a rentabJe commerCial 
·ki:tc~en,. offer coo~l11g.cfasses·, an o,p!en :SYrrl? wailkin~clubs,.hedlt~:faJrs, a . , 
·c6mmunity.garden;irtd)'buthprogfa,TT~Vtfttfirt'i1JsJ¢~ifij·,andthe~.t~( .. · An 
entrepreneur and·business·i•ncubatorwJllalso:be .ortthesfte. , 

..................... , ___________ ,_ _________ _ 



OPRA Req.u.ests 
Micah 6 is requesting an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption 
Certificate from the City of Pontiac for the property at 640 W. Huron St. 

The project rehab is estimated at $17.8M and create approximately 50 jobs 
during the 14 month renovation period and 90Jobs from the tenants in the 
building. Construction is expected to commence August 16/ 2022 and be 
completed by October 15,.202.3. 

A .. resolutlQrl° to Schedule a· public •hfaarlngio,cr:eatethe.(losolete Prope 
R~ habU itati.on Dlstflttand S" res-01 Utjt)~f~ $P.b~fJri.[~,·~ l)µfllic frearfng tQ approve 
·the .app U cation for a rt O.bsll[ete Prqpert;y R¢t)aRllltatiOn Exe[11ptJon c;:~rtificate 
are being presented to City CounaH fot hearings on April 19th~ 

-, ____ y •• w_, •~•~se•~~••• ~ 



ebster Community Center 

TE 
community center . 



Contact tnformation 

Coleman Yoakum 
{248) 632.4399 

mica•h,.6co~l11 tTl·unity@·grna.·il .. com, . 
··~n,tPrcomm11r1.itv_l1r'1·. 



Webster Communilv Cenler 
----------1i""Ja~nc:-'ltc"or=la"'=l ~..,._-------+------"2+------"-01------'o::.i ___ ..::2-1--___ ..::..io 

Bulldlno Director 1 1 o o o 
,----------+'--se-'-'c=ur=ll~v---------1-----"2+-------·-o+-___ o ___ --<2,__ ___ 01 

_________ .. FE'""v""en-'-'t--"-S"""la=rr---------+--------'2'+-----~01 ____ o....,_ __ ~2.,._ ___ o 
,-,--......., __________ =•---·~---,-----------1--------------~>-----+------I 
Leasing Tenants 
OLHSA - Head Start 

Teachers 6 6 0 0 0 
Teachers Aids 5 5 0 0 0 
Supervisor 0 0 0 

OLHSA-WIC 
Social Worker 2 2 0 0 0 
Admlnlstrallve asslslant 0 0 0 

1-----------·-------------1----------1-----1---+-----1 
s_,p~ro~u~t~Fr~e=s1~1 F'--'o~o.c,d __ S~to~re~--1------------,---·-----+-----+-------1---+------, 

Cashier/Clerk 
Manaaer 
Buyer 

Micah a Offices 

Accent Ponllac 

1-----------+M""-u=sJc lnstruclors 
Execultvo Director 

3 

11 

4 

1 

0 
0 
Ii 

0 
0 

0 

0 

3 

2 

1 

0 

0 

2 

0 

0 

3 

0 

0 

6 

2 
0 

,_T_h_e-Art-l:x-<P-e-rle_n_ce----+------------~1-----i,., .. _______ __, ___ ,. ____ _, 

Artists 4 2 1 
Ari Theraolsts 2 0 2 0 0 
Execullve Director 0 0 0 

l<alao Kids 
Danca Instructors 

•---------~1Mustclans 
Executive Director 

'""H'"'"o-no_r_,C,-o_m_m_un,.,,l,--tv""'H"'"e_,al=111--+-------------11-----1---··-1-----t----+----1 

, _________ Licensed Health Care Provider 
Licensed flealth Care Provider 1----------

1----------He a Ith Care Assistants 
Clerical Stoff 

1-----------Physlctan Interns 

Elmer's Place Barlstas 
Manaaer 

2 0 
2 0 

0 
0 

6 Ii 
3 0 

2 0 0 
2 0 0 

0 0 
0 0 

0 3 0 
0 0 0 

Pontiac Communllv Foundallon 
Business Incubator Tenants 161-----0+-----o+----16 O 

Professor 1 1 o O 0 
'"P,...o-nt,,.la-c""'F-oo...,dc..H"'u"'b----1-'c·1""e·-'rlc_a_l S_t~ar_r _______ -t-----~1-1-----1-t--____ o+---~01---___ o'-l 

'::_~_'"'_=_~~-~_=_=_~_~--~---_-_-_-_--1-:_o=-~1-,a~c=t.--o~r~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~;~~~~~~~::~1-,-t-,--_-_-_-_-_-_..,_1:,-:::_-:::_-:::_-:::_-:::_-:::_-:::_-=10-+---------_--_-~o+-____ o 



Llnnette E. Phillips 

From: 
Sent: 

tjohnson communitylandmark,com <tjohnson@communltylandmark.com> 
Friday, March 11, 2022 3;37 PM 

To: Llnnette E. Phillips; Cole Yoakum 
Subject: Re: QPRA Application - Micah 6 Project 
Attachments: Updated Service Impacts Sheet Ponitac 3.11,2022,xlsx 

Llnnette1 

Please see attached spreadsheet with list of tenants and number of Jobs expected from each tenant 

Regarding the assessor's letter, typically the City reaches out to the assessor as It ls another unit of 
government. However, I would be happy to call them directly. 

Here are the wage rates you requested: 

general labor $26 hour 

journeyman carpenter $35 hour 

drywall finisher $39 hour 

brick layer $40 hour 

elevator constructor $70 hour 

painter $35 hour 

asbestos & lead abatement laborer $46 hour 

electrician $45 hour 

plumber $31 hour 

roofer $48 hour 

concrete finisher $35 

equipment operator $36 

tile finisher $34 

Sincerely, 

Tom Johnson, EDFP 
The Landmark Group, LLC 
Developing and Revitalizing Communities 
P.O. Box 722 
Boyne City, MI 49712 
Cell: 231-633-2593 
www.llnkedln.com/pub/tom-johnson/34/414/275 

1 



Micah 6 Community 
A Community Development Corporation 

Mission: Building the Neighborhood that Pontiac Deserves 

Background 
Micah 6 Community is a 501{c}3 community development corporation serving Western Pontiac, 
Michigan since 2012. We do this through increasing access to healthy food, Improving the quality of 
housing, and providing enrichment opportunities to local children. The organization grows gardens on 
eight vacant city lots, left behind after home demolitions. We have renovated and rented out two 
duplexes In the community. We have also renovated a small commercial building that now houses one of 
our small businesses: Sprout Fresh Food Store. 

Our community was extremely hard-hit by the 2008 financial crisis and maintains a poverty rate of 
almost 42% with a median income of $16,200. The homeownership rate in our community Is only 39% 
and unemployment is at 27%. We keep in mind that these numbers are pre-COVID, which affected 
communities like ours disproportionately since most of our neighbors do have some sort of underlying 
condition and are most likely to work in service industry jobs, coming in contact most often with the 
public. The three main race groups in our community are African American (51%), Hispanic {15%) and 
White (38%). 

Micah 6 Community currently has nine employees. Two, our Executive Director and our Manager of 
Sprout Fresh Food Store, are full-time. The other seven are part-time employees. All employees at Micah 
6 Community live in the city of Pontiac and all but one live In our census tract. 

Coleman Yoakum, our Executive Director is the founder of Micah 6 Community. He comes from a 
background in social work having served at a number of organizations and our local Community 
Action Agency prior to his work at Micah 6 Community. Combined he has thirteen years of 
experience in the nonprofit sector. 
Katie Romska, our Executive Assistant manages our finances, volunteer groups, and logistics, 
Bethany Yoakum is the manager at Sprout Fresh Food Store. Bethany came to our organization 
with ten years in food and restaurant management. She has managed Sprout Fresh Food Store 
since it opened 2017, building relationships with local farms as well as retailers whom we 
connect to fresh produce. 
Emma Tracy, our Assistant Executive Director, manages all of our children's programs. She has a 
master's degree from Ball State in Applied Behavioral Analysis with an emphasis In Autism. 

In 2021, our operating budget was $1.2 million dollars. This is due to a large amount of support from the 
foundation community who stepped In to support our work around food and relief during COVID-19. Our 
support is typically an even split between individual donations, grant support, and support from various 
faith communities Including churches and synagogues. 



Webster Community Center 
Webster Elementary School ls a vacant school building located in the heart of our community and sits 
directly on M59, passed by 25,000 cars a day. The building was built In 1920 and shuttered in 2006 after 
years of declining enrollment. With 26 classrooms, a gymnatorlum, and Impressive foyer, the building 
comes In at 53,000 square feet and sits on a 5-acre campus, taking up an entire city block. 

Micah 6 Community purchased the building In 2016 on a land contract and the balance was forgiven in 
2018. Since then, we've been able to commit our energy to finding partners, creating a proforma, doing 
our feasibility study, and building our team. 

We surveyed our neighbors to help determine our focus areas and the priorities of the neighborhood In 
their community center. With over 220 respondents, we discerned the following four focus areas for the 
building: Health and Wellness, Entrepreneurship, Arts and Culture, and Youth Programs. Once we had 
those priorities established, we were able to then reach out to organizations, businesses and community 
groups and Invite them to be partners and tenants in our community center. Today, the majority of 
rentable square footage is already committed. Future tenants include PAL, OLHSA, Honor Community 
Health and ~ochester University. 

Webster will be the home to a Pontiac Food Hub, connecting growers around Oakland County with food 
entrepreneurs and retailers. We will also have a rentable commercial kitchen for food entrepreneurs, as 
a key aspect of the food hub. We are also exploring the possibility of an Indoor, weekly, farm and craft 
market, cooking classes, a rentable refrigerator space, and more. 

We are also working closely with SMART and MOOT to create an Indoor bus terminal, consolidating 
several road-side, uncovered and unmaintained bus stops into one indoor stop where riders can watch 
monitors for travel updates and bus times. We hope that this encourages employees and visitors to the 
building alike to use public transportation to come to the building. This room will be adjacent to a small 
coffee shop, 

Our Team 
Architect - CBI Designs Bloomfield TWP, working with Hopkins+ Burns on historical consulting 
Construction - Spence Brothers 
Accounting - Plante Moran 
Legal - Warner Norcross+ Judd 
Environmental - PM Environmental 

Timeline 
Micah 6 Community has recently finished building our team for this project. We are currently in the 
pre-development and fundralsing stage. We plan to begin construction In late summer of 2022. Spence 
Brothers has communicated a 12-month construction period. We are in a hurry two get two of our 
tenants In before the end of 2023, with the remainder of tenants moving In early In 2024. 



Mlcah6 
WebsC<ir Community Contor 

Pontlao,MI 
117/2022 

Project Start: SpMg20~2 
Project End: summer2023 
Month&: 

07 

W1 
W2 

W3 

W4 

Wo 

Cl 

C2 

C3 

C4 
C6 
co 
C7 
ca 

F1 
F2 
F3 
f4 
F5 
F6 
f7 
F8 

15 

Rli1nlog Wm•wood ba69(90% now) 
Now/restored C(l)Wrl ll\Qldi1gs In clasroom 
Ooor.:atilng 
Window extel\Slon Jambs 4'x1l' on lnler!or 
Window catilngs 
ir!m at t.nyllght oonloi) panel In lobby 

A@Woodwork 
Tolle! vanlUos 

Misc Div 6 Carpenlly: 
TMrmal &'Moisture Proleiifon 
Rooting/jnsulauon - remove & rep!ace 
Asphalt Shingle Roof 
Siding 
lnsulaUon In Exie Mr walls 
Exterior• Caull<lng 

M'llic Div 7 Thelma! & Mo/$1Ui8 Prolucllon: 

~WJ3\tin\~uro:v&/41W • . . . 
Hall Cltclo /restore) 
J;x!eoocllooll! 

Ellglneerod Wood Doom 
Single 
Ooublo 

Extar!ordoorhtlrdware 
lntedor Doo(!lfmmos/HW tromova and motace} 

Slngll• 
Ooublo 

RepJace 8% ol doorMrnmes (note J/A2.3) 
Single 
Double 

Automatic Oponom 
~ 

Thealer/.Cour! (La~e) 
SOclaJ Han LB)11ghl 

Dolached Boler Room Btildlnq 
New OH Door 
Newman door 

Toi~ Rooms 
W•~lnfiU 

l(xtsllnawaus 
Repair plaster web (note W1) 

Repaltp!a~:~~otoW~t- , • .,., ijli\\Jf;'l'1:tlf1/B1!:"'t-.. 

Replace plaster drop oom,,g lo entirety 
Main ts In EldsU~g Al>lusl!cel CeUlrl!} TIie (Melnlalnm) 
Clean and Palm uodersldo of $lee! sta~a 

68 If 

46,000 $I 
3,100 Sf 

I lsum 

162 eadi 
9 each 

21 each 
7 each 

35 ltlats 

94 each 
12 eacll 

8 eadJ 
1 eacll 
4 each 

1,200 st 
360 sf 

68,728 •f 
4,320 •f 
1,060 sf 
9,024 $f 
4,512 Bf 
6,760 st 
4,320. sf 

34,226 al 
51200 Sf 
6,008 Sf 

910 a1 
2,000 st 

500 JI 

2,4$2 ., 
3,500 sf 

2 each 

0,8-18 sf 
9,900 sf 
9,009 81 
7,400 81 
2,750 sf 
4,620 sf 

768 ar 
13,660 sr 
3,500 gf 

12,00 1 
1t00 48,000 

1,000.00 28,000 
300.00 40,$00 
400,00 64,800 

20,000.00 20,000 

400.00 23.200 

0 

12.00 
ts:13,000 

q52,000 
10.00 31,000 

None None 
None /\dd Alternate = $63.000 

40,000.00 ◄0,000 

0 
$1,522,900 

4,200,00 680,400 MaivlO quote+ lnslall 
6,000.00 45,000 

11,00().00 189,0QO MaMn quote + Install 
19,000,00 133,000 MalVlnquola+ lnstell 
1,000,00 35,000 

renrish In Div 08 
1,000.00 84,()00 
2,000.00 24,000 

3,000.00 24,000 
4,600.00 4,600 
3,000.00 12,000 

1111 •I Ill 

111 111 

Soi,Alt2 
S°"Alt2 

0 
. $2183830 

12-()0 30,000 
aoo.oo 1,600 

4.1)0 2a4,912 
•f.00 17,260 

ftimllm 6,480 
" 4.00 36,(Xl6 

~ 27,072 
23,040 

~ 25,920 
see palntl'!{J 

4.00 180,904 
---=ml 62,000 

'4.00 24,272 

-mi 9,1()0 
6,000 -- 5,000 

none 
none 

25,00 61,300 
1-00 3,500 

800,0Q 1,600 

19,00 187,112 
24.00 237,600 
12.00 117,70& 
6.00 37,000 

14.00 30,500 
8,00 30,960 

16.00 11,520 
15.00 203.490 
6,00 21,0QO 



Mit3hG 
WebaM community Contor 

PonUao, Ml 
117/2022 

Pr0Jeot$t111: Spdng2022 
ProJ•o!End: summer2023 
Months: 15 

Ellln!!ll.ll 
Lobby Ceiling 
Celling$ 
Wais 
Basi,ment 
BfttlDlib g~t~§!lll ~ d22m & fn!mgs (ot t!•la n•~ 

Slnola dOOrllran$0m 
Ooobla doorwtransornllle 
Cto,et do◊rs (exlsUog or new) 
Refinish stair rafllll{)& 

Stain & veJt'llsh v.indow mod trlm 
Finish 01 refln1$h wood basa / r;rown 
Misc repatr and re not sh mOd running btm res needed") 
Sleet 1nn1sea-repainted 

W6 Cl<lan & Rastore oxlsUng lntertor Brt<:l( ($trlp Jllllnl If present) 
W6 Cl<lan, Repair, and Repaint axis ling fntMor Brt<:l( (room 116) 
W7 (:!<Ian wl!I Repalrexlsling Illa wall$ (167, 157B) 
wa Clean & Restore exlsUng slone slab$ (baiht\>oms) 
W9 Clean repai' & iepalnt CMUwaUs (140MB, rnech mis) 

Mlso Div 9 Fln1$he&: 
10 S~eclaltlti, 

.. 

Tolletecce!SOltas 
larga toiletroQl!1s 
email toilet room$ 

Toilet partitions 
fire &XllngulsMrs 
Slgn•ge • Interior CO<le oompiant 
Sign ego. Dltect!onal I Ex!erlor 
vtsual Displays new~a .. R>•f!\ chalkboards (20' long) 

Ml Remove exl!tlng ehalk/OO!f<boerd, repair plaster, prap for paint 
M2 New <:llal!dloards, match existing (17 rooms, 2. pamo.m) 
M3 M•kllefll & Restore Exlsttng Chalkhoanl$(10 rooms, 2 pat) 

New llulldln!) Dlrectoiy 
Rettactable Wall (136A&8) 

11 
Mlso Div 10 • Spedlllti8'; 
E9ul2ment . • , .· .. ••·· . 
Ktt<:heo E(fllprnent 
Gym Equipment 
Bleachers. reslore 

. ·. 12 
Mlso Div 11 EqUlpment 
fiimi•hlngi • · ' · 
Machlneiy, Equipment, Fum!turo 
WindQWTtoalrnenla. motori2ed at clearstoiy In {1)'111 
WlndowTrealrnenlo • els&wharo 

Ml$<l Div 12 Furnishings: 
. 13 seocfaHionstriicllon' . 

SoWPan•I• 
lncobatorl:qulpmeot/ Desks 
Thl!alrlcsl Ughtlng and Stage Curtains 
Event Space pre-at1(Jiooerod s1ru<;iufo 
New Murel Palottn~ In Orlglnal Looitlon 

14' 
Misc Div .13 Spacial Conslruel!on 
·con'ii>Xlng~etari,a · .· . ' ..... ·.. . 
Elevator Pa~ go• 2 stops (pit, shaft, cab, elc.) 
llflatStorsge 112 
Elav,itor lo llasement 

·21 
Misc Div 14 Conveying Sy•tema 
iitiii Piotooiloil . . •· .. · . 
Fire Protection 

1G1&2ndFlo-Or 
llasemenl 
Dolathed Doller Room BulldlnQ 

Miao Div 21 Fire Protectlon: 

Spenoo e,au,,,. 

< - CIJat Breakdown-> 

1 !sum 16,000.00 16,000 
37,000 $f 1.50 65,600 

116,000 sf 0.90 104,400 
EXcluded 

ll4 each 800,00 84,600 
12 each 1,B01),00 21,600 

144 each 500.00 72,000 
2 each 4,000.00 U,000 

162 each 300,00 48,600 
13.000 If 2.00 26,000 

1 Al!OY/llllCI) 40,000.00 40,000 Includes altfppOQ patnl 
1 !sum 30,000.00 30,000 

16.416 sf 3.00 49,24Q 
672 Ill 3.00 2,016 

1,280 Bf 8.00 7,880 
2.o48 $J 5.06 10,240 

860 ., 0,00 7,680 
0 

0 
. $123,000 

4 each 4,000,00 16,000 
5 eacll 1,000.00 5,000 

27 ellch 1,000.00 27,000 
10 each ll00,00 5,000 
1 !sum 10,000.00 10,000 
1 lst.rn 20,000.00 20,000 

12 dassroome 2,000.00 24,000 
34 oaeh 2,000.00•~ 
20 each 700.00 14,000 

1 each 2,000.00 2,000 
iO k 1,000.00 Not Included Delete permeettng 9/9121 

Q 
f3'fl,ooo 

1 aUQWall!,0 276,000.00 275,000 
1 auowsnce 10,000.00 Not Included FFE par ll\Eetlng 9/9/21 

350 tr 100.00 36,000 

0 
$e,◄oo .. · 

ByO.vner ByOWMr 
1B ea 400.00 6,400 

ByOWner ByOvmer 

0 

250,000.00. ~ 
'$260,000 . : . . · .. ·.. ' . . . · · . • 

1 !sum flW~~ti~:i 
ByOWllar llyOWner 

ollowatl()O 100,0Q().OO Not Included FFE per meettng 9/9121 
$eaAll3 

aMowanoo 6,000.00 Not Included FFI: par meeUng 9/!J/21 

0 ..... 
·$280,000 · .· . 

l allomnc<1 250,000.00 250,000 
1 !Sum l;,i.1p~1 30,000 lfflW:~lfil::J:Z:~1 ',,, . ,,.,,,~,,_ .~•'"if 

Nollncluded hcvm/Requlr ? 

0 
" $228400 

52,000 sf 3,50 162,000 
11,eoo sr 4.00 46,400 Included per ll\Eeling 9/!l/21 

Notl1ciuded 

0 



MloahG 
Webs tor Community Cenlor 

PonUao,MI 
ff7/2022 

ProJoctStartl 
Project End: 

$pdng2022 
Summer2023 

Montha: 15 

l'lumbln 
Plum no 

Oerno~'lloo (CUI & Cap) 
S1oITTl System 
Stonn overflow 
Sanltaiv Waste and Ven! 
Grease Waste 
Oome,uo Waler 
Gas Piping 
Plumb~ Flxtur88 

Waler Closet 
Ui1ilal 
lav • countertop 
mopGink 
water coolers 
$hQwers 

Kllchen Allowanoo 
Slovlng,'coring 
Startup 
Material Escalatloo 
Equlpmenl Escalalkm 
Ex<:avaUon 
lnsulaUon 
Col1Cfoto 1:qulpment Pads 
Mlsoelaneous 

Miso Div 22 Plumbln{l: 
23 Hullnil, Vel\tllatlng & Alr'Condltlimlr;r. 

HVAC-Rooflop VAV Sy&lemv,llh HW eat 
llemoll1Jon (Cut & Cap) 
1:qu\pmenl 

Rooftop Unit•~ Tons 
Rooftop Unlt-6 Tons 
Rooftop Un\t • 15 Tons 
B0<1el'$• 1,500 MBH 
Boiler Pumps 
Primary HHW PU111j)S 200 GPM 
AJr Sep & l:xp Tan~ 
HW Cabinet UnU Healers 
TR Exhaust Fan 
JC Exhau,j\ Fan 
ArtRoomEF 
Kitchen Exh~ust Fan 
1</tciianMUAUnlt 
Kitchen EJ<huast Hood 
UnllVanl 
UnltVenlACCU 
DOA$ -6700 CFM 
llOAS • 3300 CFM 
Sowrity Omoo ACU 
RoorcurM 
ACCU Equip Supports 

Plpilg 
l:quipment Connectlons: 
Cond.OrnlM 
VIN Line Sets 
VUVRHCoUs 
Piping: 
HHWS&R 4• 
HHWS&R 3• 
HHW$&R 2" 
HHWS&R 1' 

Sheetmolal 
D-.l< • 1•t flOOr North • 

DOAS System: 
Duct• 24124 
SAOIIMor,, 
LPSA Duel• Rd 

Tenant Space Duet 
LP$AOucl 
SADlff\lsers 
LP$A Oucl • Rd 
RAG 

E"'18UII Ssylell\$: 
LP!:AOucl 
EJ<haust G!itlas 

81)6<1ce81ollll,. 

1 Isom 7.200.00 7,200 
1 Isom 117,607.00 117$17 slorm, fndn drain, rQOf dl'81n 
1 l&Uli1 61,578.00 61,678 
1 lal.W11 82,305.00 62,aQ6 
1 lsum 9,530.00 9,530 
1 11um 94,116.00 04,116 
1 l&um 80,620.00 80,520 

1 fsum 37,660.00 37,658 34 
1 !sum 9,371.00 9,371 7 
1 lsum 13,462,00 13,462 17 
1 lsum 1,346,00 1,346 1 
1 fsum 9,524.00 9,524 4 
1 !sum 2,389,00 2,389 2 
1 Allowance 36,000.00 36,000 
1 lstim 3,6()0.00 3,600 
1 Isom 3,600.00 3.61)0 
1 AJ!Owance 108.$71.00 108,971 
1 AJ!Qwaooe 11,840.00 11,840 
1 !sum 5,000,QO 1),000 
1 Iium 60,039,00 'lS,030 
1 !sum By0iv03 
1 lsum 101,220.00 101,220 

0 , , 

fMOD,2/ll 

1 Isom 7,200.00 '7,200 

1 !sum 12,660,00 12.eso 
1 ls\lll 14,880.00 14,880 
1 lsl>Tl ~0,760.00 60,760 
1 IGUfll !io.530.00 60,530 
1 Isom 10,466,0l\ 10A66 
1 lsum 17,018,00 17,019 
1 lsum 7,743.00 7,143 
11$1111 16,506.00 16,506 
1 ,_, 12,100:00 12,705 
1 !sum 1.622.00 1,622 
1 lsum 4,865.00 4,865 
1 Isom 4,163,00 ◄,163 
1 lsllli1 16,000.00 16,000 
1 1oum ;,,l"'1,00 b 110() 
1 Isom 384,000.00 384,000 
1 lsum 11,660,00 11,880 
1 !sum 60,000.00 IJ0,000 
1 lsum 35,000.00 35,000 
I !sum 3,440,00 3,440 
1 leum 3,150.00 3,160 
1 !sum 23,100.00 23,100 

Ileum 8,514.00 8,614 
1 l$U01 1).600.00 6,600 
1 1,um 15,41)3,00 16,◄03 

I lsum 7,737.00 7,737 
1 IWm 17,035.00 17,005 
1 tsum 31,268.00 31,268 
1 lsum 18,919.00 18,919 

1 11\J(JJ 11,300.00 6,300 
1 lsum 1,621.76 1,622 
1 !sum 1,840.00 1,846 

1 lsum 9,218,00 9,216 
1 hmm 11,120.e4 11,121 
1 Isom 12,872,00 12,67Z 

1 lsum 1,728,00 .1,728 
1 !sum 1,042.51) 1,043 



Mlcah6 
Wobetar Community cent~r 

Pontllo,Ml 
11712022 

ProJoctstart: Spdng2022 
ProJoot End: 
Months: 

Summer2023 
15 

Ductwotk • ht Floor SO\llh 
DOA$ System: 

LP$A Duct• 24124 
$A Diffusers 
LPSA Ou«· Rd 

Tenant Space Duct: 
LPSADU<A 
SA Diffusers 
LP$AD\ltj•Rd 
llAG 

El<hausl $yi!lams: 
LPEADuct 
E,diaust Grilles 

GymDuct: 
LPSA DuCl-24124 
SAGrtlles 
LPSA Duct• Rd 
LPRA Duct-24124 
SA Grilles 

Soda! Hall/l.R>rnly Duel: 
LPSADU<:t 
SA Diffusers 
LPSA Duct-Rd 
LPRADuel 
RAG 
LPEAOU<:t 
E><hau!l Golie$ 

Kltctien Duct: 
MUADuct 
SA Olffusef!l 
LPSA Duct- Rd 
Hood Elcha~t Pu<:t 
Ar:een Doors 

Sheetmalal Fabrtcallon 
Boler I Dom WH Flues 

Slartop 
Corlng 
Temperat\Jro Con~ols 
lnsulatl<Jn 
Tosl&Balarn:e 
Con<:rete Equipment Pads 
Mat•rl~l EscalallQn 
Sheelmetal Feb e,catauon 
Equfmnent EscalaUon 
Misoolenoous 

26 
Mls.c23 Heauno, VenU!Jlijng&AlrCol\d!Honl"!J 
Eleotiiciaf . · : . . · . · . . . · . . 
Eie,;bk,il 

lntertor Ughtlog 
General Wiling 
DalnlCommunlcalloM 
Fire Alann 5)>$lern 
Securi1y S)'$1en1 (raceway) 
AUdiQNlsual l;yl,tem 
Clock System 
l<ltchen Equ~111Gnl Wiring 
Mechanical Equipment Wirlng 
Service Equipment & Feeders 
Oemolllion 
Mlsoovana(lUS 

Mlse DIV 26 Electrleal: 
27 C cornmunloations . · .. · ·· 

Doi a/ Communlca!lons cabMg 
AV System 

Ml~o Phi 27 CormnunlcaUons: 
2$' 1:lectronlo Siifoty & SoQurfty 

Electronla Safety & Seeurlty 

Mlso Div 28 Elec Safol)I & Soe\J!IIY: 

t tsum 6.300,00 6,300 
1 !sum l,621,76 1,622 
1 !sum 1,848.00 1,8'18 

1 !sum 65,664.00 65,664 
I lwm 9,730.6$ 9,731 
1 !sum 11,088.00 11,088 

I lsurn M88,00 3,168 
1 lsurn 1,853.44 1,353 

1 lsurn 2,700.00 2,700 
1 lsum 1,675,75 1,576 
1 lsurn 1,320,00 1,320 
1 lsum 720,00 720 
1 lsurn 745.15 745 

1 lsum 3,000.00 3,600 
1 !sum 2,780.16 2,780 
1 !sum 3,168.00 3,168 
1 lium 720,00 720 
1 lsurn 564,00 564 
l lsurn 2,160.00 2,160 
1 !4um 463.(!e 403 

1 Isom 720,00 720 
1 lsurn 695,04 695 
1 Isom 702,00 792 
1 lsum 2,160.00 2,160 
1 lsum OOMO 855 
1 Isom 137,973 137,978 
1 lsum 12,456 12,458 
1 lsum 10,800,00 10,600 
1 lsurn 5,400.00 5,400 
1 lsurn 127,695.00 127.685 
1 !sum 146,570.00 14o,670 
1 lsum 8,644.00 8,6# 

ByDIV03 
1 AIIOW!lnce 49,280.00 40,260 
1 AlloWance 12,W9,00 12,509 
1 Allowance 130,465.00 1:)(),46/l 
1 1,um ~1,031),()0 331,038 

(I 
·,1:a13,51$ 

!SIM 594,080,00 594,08() 
1$\1111 125,881.00 125,881 
lsurn 64,700.00 64,766 
lsurn 108,552.00 10M52 
!sum 1,109,00 1,109 

Nol included 
Not included 

lsum 16,000.00 16,000 
lsurn 154,450.00 164,450 
lsurn 142,309.00 142,309 
lsum 49,020.00 49,929 
lsum 59,500.00 69,500 

0 

1 allOV/8rtC() 60,000.00 
$6G,000 

60,000 
1 allowance 15,000.00 15,000 

0 
$78,QOO 

1 allowance 76,000,00 76,000 

0 



Mloahe 
Webstor Community Centor 

Ponllac,MI 
1/712021 

Project S1art1 
ProJeat l!'nd: 

Spring2022 
Summer2023 

Months: 15 

Prep/atom, base lor Asphatt 
P1ep for walks 
Prep for Cllrb$ 
Bus loop rxep 
Block for oleps/ramps 

Misc Dlv. 31 Eerlhwof1(: 
l!xleriorlriip,011omQnts 
New a@&$lble l'lllTlJl• 

North E&$l (lndUdlng new ma$OllfY wal) 
SoUlh (~ilher side or malnentr~) 
South East (lnclud!ng nawmaaonrywall) 

New Asphalt• Pailllng Lot 
New Curt>s • Pal1dng lot 
New Curt>s• event $pace 
New Concrete walks (only as shown, not "ll• nee<led') 
New door eloops al dmroom el<\erior doom (A0.1) 
New QllnClllle approach•$ at slf\!et (AO, 1) 
eu, Loop (W deoel lanes) 
El<\erlorStepe 

Small sets (al .tdowalk elevation changes) 
Large sets (fllWOf1dng main enlronoe) 

MeehanlcalAt<»» Hatch In OOurfyard 
New tenoe • G' hloh alumlnum 
Newblkaracks 
Lond,;c,1plog (flna grade, $88d'llll!, and plantfngs) 
Oump$\et Pad end EndOBUl8 
Col'M\!Jnlt)' Garden I Greenhouses 
Transrom111r Pad 
sne UghUng 

Mlso Olv 32 Eldorior lmptovement,: 
UUittles', .. ,.. , 
Newflreprote ons erwalerl otapfees 
PomesUc water One 
Sehltsiy Sewer 
$torm Sewer ot Bull<Jfng 
Storm at parldng Lot 
DTE EleciJ!eal I PQl\'er /Servlc:e ConnecUon Fee 
Electrt<:al Sile UUlitles ((rom ltaosformer to bk!Q) 
Community Garden 

Water 
Electrical 

Misc Div 33 Utilities: 
99 . Oonllng$ncloa II. Ad/iisfulonta ' . . .. · · · • . ' '. . .' 

O•~lgn & Estimate Contingency (based on DD doonnents) 
Markel udJustment 
Sub• Pelfonnanoe & Payment Bond 
CM PetlonnaM<i & Payment Bond 
CM contlngenGy 
CM lnsuranca 
Btllde(s Risk lnsuranoo 
CM Fee 

lO AL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: 

Sitt Costs 
llulldtng Co,,ts 

Bulkllng ~OO$lnJO~OI\ a"'a (GSP): 
Cost per SF or bu tiding cons I area: 

~cations I Gl•dllcal/ons· es wo!ll In Basement & Tuonels (see Altemato 1) 
Excludoa AIE costs. 
l:xcludo$ FF&E, 
Includes petrnlt fees. Trade permits Included, 
Excludes uUlity tap or lfll!)aci fees (Ff> tap fee Included) 
Exdude, sou borings. 
Exdudos handKng of hau11doul/oontnll'lnatod so~. 
Excludes loadlasbllstos $\1/\/ey Qndu<fos) abatemenL 

1 each 
2 ead) 
1 each 

30,200 41 
1,300 If 

264 If 
6,000 er 

13 e~ch 
2 Mch 

4,600 er 
7 each 
1 each 
1 lsum 

1,100 If 
3 each 
1 rwm 
1 lsum 

1 faum 
1 lsum 

35,000 &f 
1 allowaw, 
1 I.um 

lsum 
lsum 

3,DO % 
2,()0 ')(, 
0,0() ')(, 
0.00 % 
2.00 % 
0,55 ')(, 
0.20 % 
3.00 % 

0 

100,000.00 100,000 
60,000.00 $eaAlt4 
83,000.00 83,000 

3.00 108,000 
30.00 39,000 
30,00 7,920 
10,00 

1,000.00 
8,000.00 

12,00 65,ioo 

5,000,00 35,000 
12,000:00 12,000 
8,000.00 t),000 

150,00 seaAlt6 
2,500.00 7,500 

35,000.00 35,000 
26,000.00 25,000 

2,000,00 
By Owner 

2,000 
200,330,00 200,330 

0 

30,000.00 30,000 
Re-USIJ exlsl!Jlg 
R<>-US<Je><l.liflil 
Re-Use exlsUng 

3.00 105,000 
40,000.00 40,000 

28,672.00 28,672 

10,000,00 10,000 
6,000.00 6,000 

10.i2a.ao'i 
16,126,807 
15,126,807 
1G,126.807 
15,128,607 
16,126,807 
15,126,807 
18,216,937 

453,604 
·302,536 

Notln<>lu<IIKI 
Not lncltlded 

302,636 
83,197 
30,264 

486,478 

16,786.613 

$800,560 

llasomont '· 11,UQQ 
i&t Floor · 60,000 

CE 
RS 

Sea Altoma!a 4 

~'m 

See Altemala 5 

ByOw11er 

not shol\n yet but mmme<J 
ByOwner 

2nd Floor, ....,....;_..:;2;,c,0;.;.00;.. 
63,e® 
2~3.Q2 

Excludes Ov111o(s conllllgency, 
Excludes P & P Bond, 
Excludes Sub Boods 
Excludes LEED certif1caUon. 
Excludes dats/AV/secunty design 
Excludes wtod0\'1tt,,etmen1s (ctere&iory In gym lnquded) 
Excludee l,venl Spac:o In courtyanl 
lncludos alk>l•ll!nce ror electrlcal servtc:o coonecllon 



MleahO 
WebsterCQmmuntty Cantor 

Pontlac,MI 
1/71202.2 

Pro/oet Sllrt: Spoog2022 
ProJeot l!nd: !!ummer2023 
Months: 15 

sooner, Plaonlng, Bidding 
Conslrucilon Staffing, 

Prolecl Dlrec:tor 
ProJocl Manager 
Lead SUMrintendejil 
Pro)ecl Engineer 
Se!ety Director 
ProJettAdm!n 

Ganerot Condition C9&14 
Temporory Oflloo (Rentel/Trallers) 
Temporary Offl<le Supplies & PrloUng 
Temporary Office Equipment (desks, cilalll!, prlnlera, eta.,) 
Telepl\01111, Fax&tntemot 

'01:ac 
. . fuel &.gxpt,nses f~r Jcbstt& 8ll!l111Vill0n p . 

To 
Temp. Heating a (las Chatges 
TomporaryTollets 
Temporary Protection 
temporal)' F•ni:lng 
Tomporary Sidewalk Prote<;llon and Pedestrian Control 
Dumpsters 
Del~CleanUp 
Filla Cleanlng 
Safety On.Stte 
Job $IQns, Heid Hals & Ve$\~ 
Parking 
Sur,>ey & Layout 
IT &SOllV/elll 

llulldlng Pannlt 
Utilil)ITap & lf1'4>aclPees 
En'lfrQnmental atudi<l$ & aurvoy 
Prclmlrnuy $ol lnvesUgaUon (bonngs) 
Metertals TesUng & 1Mpe¢1lon 

Misc DIV 1 c:¼neNJI Condltlons: 
02 ExlaUng Conilltlona· .· .. · ...... · . • 

ifrwlrorvnenteOAbetem•nlJWater Removal 
Water Removal 
Basement and Tuhoet • Remove Debris and Cteen 
Abolement• Asbtlstos and Lead 
Removal of underground &toraga lank 

se1ecwe oemol!Uon (llnor~oaletl••nl) 
1st and 2nd Floor 

Oetached l!Offe/ Room Building 
Remove e)dsUng elalrs 
Dtrno oxterlorwall for OCl'I 16x8 OH door 
Demo toll•l roomwaUs end fixtures 
Demo 2 boflers / piping 

P0,1 Troocti f1oOr (Qr new plumb!ng 
Roof Level 

Remove sl<yllghl \'.Qvers 
Cul down OJd$ijng thlrnney 
Oemo f'OQf for (WVI skylloh(s 

5ma1 (lobby) 
Large(gym) 

Remove roonop equ1pm,int\HVAC loeludescut& cap) 
Remove metnt parnpet 

Mlso OW 2 Eldstlng Condillons; 
0~ ·conc~io ····· ··· · 

lDlid2.C 
Repak staldhtMd$ 
Paith plumblrl(J lroncil 

M2. Ramp and floor et 1111 room 
Oelllched BOIier Room BUildlng 

$1abon0etk 
Stair pan Conc,oto 
Column roo6ngs 

~ 

Mtso DIV 3 CO(l(;/l)le: 

Sp,<10, a,,,u,,,. 

CE 
RS 

!lee Summary Sheet 
15mo 30,000.00 

In monthl)I rate 
In monlh!y rate 
In monthly rate 
In monlhly rate 
In monthly rate 
In mon!Ny ralo 

15mo 3,300.00 49,500 
In monlhly rate 
In monthly rat~ 
In monlhly rote 
In monlhly rate 
tnmonlhlyrate 

$&27650 ·" · . · • 

16 mo 3,000.00 45,000 
6 mo 16,000.00 80,000 

15 mo 1,450.00 21,750 
62,000 sf 1.00 62,000 

1 !sum 25,000,00 25,000 
1 l$um 10,000.00 10,000 

62,000 sf MO 31,200 
Ml wks 480.00 22,862 

&woo af .0.80 41,600 
66 \\'1($ 250.00 16,238 
1 lsllll 10,000.00 10,000 

On~lta Parklngonslle 
1 tlltJTl 4,000.00 4,000 
1 1sum 18,000.00 18,000 
1 lsum 11iQ,OOO 160,000 

Se~Dlv33 SeeDlv33 
llyOV10er ByOWner 
ByO'llr\81 ByOWner 
ByQWf\er ByOWner 

months 0 
$854,000 

lsurn 175,000.00 175,000 Span! already 
I lsurn 222,000.00 222,000 (EGLE gront $425) 
t leum 76,000.00 71i,()()0 Survey By OWner 
1 !sum 81,600.00 81,500 Per ra-09ncillaUoo with PM Env. 

a2,ooo sr 5.00 260,000 
' llUildlng Rometns 

6eoA!t2 
SeaAll2 
$89A!l2 
SeoA!t2 

350 JI 30.00 10,500 AJSQ seaA!temalu 

8 1)$ 1,000.00 0,000 
1 lwm 10,000.00 MovetoOIVOS 

5,000.00 r~~ 1 tsum 
1 laum 16,000.00 15,000 
1 !&\Jill 5,000.00 5,000 
1 lsum 2,000.00 2,000 

0 
$30950 ·~- ., 

113 enth 100.00 16,950 
350 ll 20.00 7,000 Al$0 se• allemales 

1 lsum 7,000.00 7,000 

See A!t2 
8e&All2 
SeeAlt2 
lnPlv3Z 

0 



Micah& 
WebelllrC-OmmunUy CenM 

Pontlao,MI 
11712022 

ProJ••I Start: Sprlilg2022 
Project l!nd: Su0\mer2023 
Month•: 

NJ.2 

A4.2 

M.,3 
M.2 

15 

Repairs• Tud< Pointing 
~ 

1st Floor Walls (50%) 
20d FJoorWalis (60%) • 
CNrmey& Tower(100%) 
Cut d0\'111 axlstlng dltnmy 

lulrul2l: 
lat F!Oor Theater/Court 

l,jjsoArr;h Oetall Repaint- Exl§fjg( 

< - Cost Breakdown - > 

8,174 ,, 
1,260 sf 
1,02Q st 

1 !sum 

3,600 sf 

2M0 
23,00 
23.00 

10,000.00 

180,002 
28,750 
23,460 
10,000 

SQUih elevatlon 1 h111m 180,000.00 180,000 
Ee$! & West elevaUona 2 eaeh 100,000.0Q· 200,000 
North elevation (2 areas) 2 Qach 30,000.00 50,000 

!las!ffli~~ie8~~:;i\YJl!c\i~~;~~ir~l3lt~1~~'lf{J&~asfg£,fl;Jilifil~ 
CMU wall In baseriwntto enclose storage room 1 lsum 2,000.00 2.000 
CMU closuresatalrshaft& 26 eacit 600.00 12,500 
Elevator shaft wall$ In Div 14 
~ 

LIii raf1lP masonry 
Detached BotterRoom Building 

New OH dOllr opening 
New Man door ope ring 

New MasonryWeU SE corner at romp 
NewMason WaUNEcomeratrarnp 

lnwl2£ 
eaoonient 

N&Wmalal stairs/landing 
R•plaoo ship, ladders 
Service plaUonn /Qr bottera 
Servtci, plaUorm !or electrlcal oqup,neril 

Flrat Floor 
Sltuctullll Steel tram!nwrolnforclnQ for ro<>ftop mero units 
N&Wstage handrails 
New11Uardran In Gym 
Gym Entrance railng (south steps) 
Metal de~ for romp al 1111 room 

Sei:QndFloi>r 
Re$1ore ratings 
N&W metal raUlnga at 3 openings 
New metal handraUs st 2nd floor stairs 

~ 
New Metal Handrals (2 on <IQulh enlmnoe edded) 
New mechanlcal seteens on roof ahhaft$ 

q;,taclled Bojler Room Qulldfna 
New melat pan stalrs/ra!Jlngs 
New ateel beams& Columns 
Nav1 metal dac;k 
New ra'ilog at new floOr 
New OH dOllrfreme 

1 !sum 

1 ISUtll 
1 !sum 
1 nBowal1t8 

22,◄00 sf 
4,500 61 

1 !sum 

1 !sum 
2 each 
1 kwn 
1 1sum 

3 each 
4 eadl 

192 If 
2 each 
1 lsum 

1 to\l!l1 
3 each 
2 eacit 

11 each 
o each 

4,000.00 

3,000.C)O 
20,000.00 
76,QOO.OO 

1.00 
1.00 

~-D 

30,000.00 
3,000.00 

16,000,00 
14,000,00 

12,600,00 
1,000.00 

40.00 
1,000,00 

- 4,000.00 

0,000.00 
700.00 

10,000.00 

1,600,00 
600,00 

4,000 

SeeAlt2 
Se&Alt2 

22,400 
4,600 

300,000 

0 

30,000 
6,000 

16,000 
14,000 

37,500 
4,000 
7,680 
2,000 
4,000 

&,QQO 
2,100 

20,000 

16,600 
MOO 

SooAlt2 
SeeAll2 
See All 2 
SeeNt2 
SooNl2 

Ml$c Div 5 Metals: 
116 WQ<ld,'Plaii!lce&Coinposllo$ 

.9 

~ 
~ 
Limestone sills, plfaslera, capital& 
patch and coating and eealanl 

Evenlspaoo JQcaUon 

$1eB 380 · 

nsw 
Ml'/ 

. $708,100 . 
Rough CBlpon!N 

Rooffrarrlng repair 
M14cwall & roof bloefdng 
M1$c floor skloper repair 
FIR In $lag• flOQf hole 

1 enowal1C(l 10,000,00 10,000 Ntowence 

lnflll oeUlolJs nt old &\(yW(llllB 
~ lnlill skyflght et lljlper stage 

Doghouse lot temp protecU<m prior to hatch Installation 
Fln!shCetnon~ 

lnsts! salvaged stooo pacu,ls on loUel wallt 
Reliloto grins al gym sll\ge 
Craata n&w rewsalo wilng 
Replace wood door dosels.1ockera • 24 sets or 6 

81 Restoro bulUns al tenant epac,, (21 restore) 
85 New bultt In cal>loett at tenant space (4 new) 

New AJr Handler Closets In tenant $pac,, 
Nswsta1r11 at gym 
Newstntrnlstage 

62,000 $1 
1 eUowan,:,e 
i lstm 
6 each 
1 !sum 
1 !&Um 

4 each 
1 !sum 
4 oacit 

144 each 
21 each 
4 each 

26 l\ach 
2 each 
2 eaeh 

1,00 52,000 
50,000.00 50,000 Nlowance 

1,000.00 1.QOO 
2,000.00 12,000 
6,000,()0 (!;l!l1m[flllllffl 
2,500.00 2,600 

10,000.00 40,000 
4,000.00 4,000 
3,000.00 12,000 

600,00 72,000 
2,000.00 42,000 
2,000.00 l!W'~il'il1 

I • I I I ~ 1 1 

I I I 

2,000.00 52,000 
6,000.00 10,000 
4,000,00 8,000 



LJ LJ LJILJ LJ ILJI LJJL_JILJ 

□ 

D □ 
D<J:lt. ~,,11/iUscw,c;} 

. ,..,. ... l' =-..::.::-~(,+• ;;;;.,;.- ;:j,-,~1 i,...,,_,..._.,,.,.,,. __ ~-..:. ~-=:;""-:::[ioJ 

i :-~;i'ii- J :Jt:~10 ' CJ ~-,,i- ~- -1i-J1<>1 

□ 

□ 

,-= 
"' >a: 
ffi~
~ ·~~ 
w z 

!"IH¾- I -1-11:1 
~~P--i~l t • 1__µal o fm +1r9 re, I @"'-!<>, l0 "-i[i''c_ __ I --' 

I§,) 

I½=.-

Pt..AVFIEl.O ~\\ 

='''""A~ 
' .. ~ 0 ~ ,r-~ "{, 
'-.,ii.:~\~ ,/; ,'-'-)\ 

~~ \~~ \.., ~ -x, ~-\ ~ 
(\ ~' '~~ \.\ -:-, '\"''\~ ',~ 

·~ <C~i/~ ~ "-" /; «:;;,..'•~~ 
<:-. \,:~\--~~ rii, \;"> 

<-~ \~ v •~~t ~ V 

f'c, "'-" \0' ~ 1,· ~~>'<? ,~~'~ -
I~ V V:• ',«, ~~~ 
, ~- f>s'f--- 1 ~,:.. 

\'-::-~' 
q ''> 
I'":, ,,) I co7'::ENS I 

! 
i 

___ j 

□ □ 

LJ 

ly_ 
t>lRl!Cl'IOIW.IINl'Of<W'1!0NA!. Slllll 
11:U!W•N" 

o· 
MURPHY AVE. 

I I I 
MONROE ST. 

WEBSTER COMMUNlTY CENTER CONCEPTUAL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN 
SCAL&MOO' 

~ WESSTE!!COMM'JN!lYCENm I 
MIW~!fflCtr 

: ! I 
llfj{-= 
l!EliA~ 
!I~ 

- ca 
MO!MellrS!llllcaNCEl'TSl<ETc:R 'l?:ll,l,NTlt>!!lll'll'!U.'mmSlllll 
CU>W•JIO' .-.uiW',t-C" 

D 

~ 

PARK.WG P~OI/IOED: 
Ot.:S?T£:: 70 
Oll'F":Sm;;. 5.e: 
~QVIOE0:1~ 
smt:eT: li~nD'i.},..17 
ro,'Al;. 1.Q. ~--~lall ?ARKING REOUtREO· 
C~IJSEM,;:;"<1100: 
CEF"AUL.TJl'Am.:NC REO"l' 
!i,z.5JO,Gq1l/500"'1~1iGp«:t:I. 

L 
r-
1 

! 
i 
! 

~•,Y<¼~~,='==A--------- ----------------------

N ... 
:;:i 
'Cl' 

2:!E 
C • 

"'., u .cu~ 
~z:-~ o- 0 

E~~ 
S5E 
:'2uti, 
o~c 

i~5 
{l :c: 
s:~ 

0 ... 
<O 

19027 

g 
~il 

fi;;a; mtr ,;rn 
t..wJ 

PJM 

_Rg~ 

~,~ I~ 
~ 
~ A0.1 



,.__ 
Q

J 
......, 
C

 
Q

J 
u ~
 

......, 
·-C

 
::J 
E

 
E

 
0 
u 

C
 

,.__ 
cu 
0

1
 

Q
J ·-...c 

........, 
u 

V
1

 
~
 

...a 
u"' 

Q
J 

cu 
·,p 

5 
C

: 
0 
a.. .. 

,.__ 
C

 
0 

0 
I
-

:, 
Y

-
:c 

C
 

?i 
0 

0 '<
:j' 

·-
I..O

 
......, 
ro 
>

 
0 C

 
(]J 

0:::: 
-0

 
Q

J 
V

1
 

0 c.. 
0 !a-.. 

a
_

 



It 

f 
j 
l 
l! 

i 
'/: 
~ 

:i: 

I 
" ! 
i! 
;. 
f 
~ 

f 
l 
t 
i 

! 
i 
l 
! 
l 
i 

I 
& 
! 

I 
i ___ ! 

I 
! 

l 
i 

---, 
! 
i 
i : 

w 
0 

~ 

P~CFROVIOE'O:" 
O"lstre 70 
smeET; "~J•17 
TOT>L.; lJ1 ir;mtt!-=--
PA.maNC- R:EOUIREQ: 
COUM:tRCVIL !JSE. 'lt.ClHOO; 
!lUAUL.TPAAIO«,RfQ'r 
~.;nt~»1CC~ 

~ 

r<=--~ 

PLAY~ 
2:0C' I( 144' 

'----------.. 

;. • -'~ •• •,.IGtl'COC.llil,U:;: •• 

~~z::,. 
.---1 _ __....,., .... 

i~ 

COMMIJNITY GARDENS 
J GREENHOUSES l 

MURP!iX.,~~ WIDE 

I I I I 
MONR.E,s"!t,,;.2.~ WIDE 

WEBSTER COMMUNITY CENTER CONCEPTUAL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN 
SCALSNOO' 

'!' 

~\ . 0': °"" ....... ,, 
0- ~-~ » ~ ~'~-

~' \:S~ ,;,· .,.,. ❖,, ~\\ "~ 

"',{&{~ti;, \f' ef:\\\""' ~~-'> 'c; ,c;,• 

<".'.c '-'o ~ '';'-'' (,'>ct,'<~-0 
~ z ~ _,..';','~ ,, ..... 

,,:::,\,A (::;:> ,7 •"''- 0 . ',f 's;;. it-\(),-~ 

rR!icBEif fUJCH Wt 
El""~ 
□---

~ ~~~r~-« ;0' '0-»l 

~=· i~'•T1 

~ 
~ 

w 
0 

3: 
0 
0 

':' 1 
,s; 
f?.r 

i~I 
5 
0:: 
::, 
:,: 

;:: 

l 
i 
l 

I 
·fr 
l 

N 
<r m 
0, 
<r .s~ 

g~u 

~~~ o- O 

E~~ 
~5! 
~u~ 
o~c 

~j~ 
"':c 
~~ 

0 
;:;; 

19027 

~ 

AOJ 



I I 

JI! I 
-,iii" 

l 
I 

.. 

I t 

ll1E
8t, ltt\l ')U

!lU
O

,j '\oaJ\S
 U

O
JO

H
 'M

 0~9 
J8

\U
a

:, A
\\U

nU
llU

O
J Ja1sqaM

 
0

4
) JO

f suo11eM
U

alJ I iga; ~! .. 
ll8l 

I 

_
.
r
e

,
_

 

OJ 
u

-
~

 

] 
fl~ ij! 

I 

l811 

• 
~ I Ii 



S1V
U

01S\l:;JO
~d tJ!)\$,lQ

 1
$

) 

IESI 

IM~ 

Z
t,E

Q
t, JV'l 'JB

j~U
O

d 'J88JJS
 U

O
JnH

 'M
 0

t,9
 

Ja\U
8

) -<11un\U
W

O
) J8JS

qO
M

 
041 JOJ suo11eM

uau 

t~ ~~ 

01 

-,!"' 

ll0ll 

fivil 

~
 

I 
I 

r l! 

I I 

-I: I ~ l 
~~r 

Ii 
I i 



~:'B
H

iO
lS

S
lJO

'U
J m

:nua H
I) 

151 
. 

w
 

• 

?:tit811 llN
 'Je!lU

O
d '1aaJ\S

 U
O

JllH
 'M

 01>9 
J8

\U
8

) ~!U
t1W

W
O

) Jill~
qeM

 
8

4
) JO

J S
U

O
jl~/\O

U
O

IJ 

. 
·
~
~
 

f 
~
 

D
 

_J 
-
-
-
-
-
. 

·; 
\'.,:;;a!'-----c:,:,,_--2) -

I 
, 

ii 
cs,"'·'>------

s,f'"'"':t~1-.w' 
l 

e 
,,:;-· 

'"..:~ •> 
0

---
-

..1-......_._t., 
-E

B
-

a 
,CJ! r,? 

''t;►,v 
,i 

.1, 
-
-
-
-
-
·
 1. 

ii 
(t('">

\j) 
\
Y

 
,i' 

I 
r. 

i¾ 
~Ii L[h 

"i>" 
~ 

'\( 
I 

I 
~ 

<:::}/ 
::> 

1, S•• 
~ 

•lt, 
~~ ir=

=
ir=

=
=

 
\~I 

t-i:~' I ' 
/
j
 

-
-

,j,_
, 

i 
I 

-=
-~

~
~

iji'v ~ &!1~11~ 
~

I!~
 

7
~

;
 ~J 

I 
r;:=

=
=

=
=

l 
' 

Ht h
 _ h ~ 

t;;:;;;;;=
=

=
=

t=
=

;t... 
'I 

<
 v

' 

-~ 
f 

11 
1 t 

1tl 
ii 

, 
l 

~I 
! 

I I -
. 

·-·---
-

11 
Ir. 

f! 
~ 

: JI, 
le 

I
i
i
-
-
-
-
,
-
.
,
.
 

i 

~-
-

·-~
~

 
--f---------j----

I I 

M
 ~1,I 

!;~ 
I fl;~ IE'ij 

Jd= 
IHI Iii' 

,1
 

f',-------,.-

r-1 I i !~;-, 
,1 

: 

&lur:-----
~
~
 

n iii 
! 

,
r
 

jl_
_

 
·--·-_-J1~ h 

tJ r-
t 'J

r
-
-
-
~

 
r I 

' 



nv,m
us:um

rn ll!n
n

o
 ra::t 

Isl 
"
\
"
 

vC
 
~ 

Z!l£8V
 IW

 'lE
J\U

O
d 'lG

8J\S
 U

O
Jnfl 'M

 0!19 
1a1uaJ l11unw

w
o:i Ja\iqaM

 
041 JO

J uo11e~ouau 



#4 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

City Council President Mike McGuinness, and City Council Members 

Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

Mayor Tim Greimel; Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

March 31, 2022 

HR Services Contract with National Career Group 

The City recently issued an RFP for HR Services. During the last few weeks, 
representatives from the Administration and City Council reviewed the responses that 
were received to this RFP. From this review, it has been decided that the leading 
response was from the firm of National Career Group and this recommendation is being 
brought to City Council. 

We have had conversations with the recommended firm and the attached Scope of Work 
("SOW") has been developed. Additionally, the attached contract has been drafted for this 
proposed engagement. The total price of the engagement is expected to be $75,000, not 
including any additional expenses for incidental expenses. 

In order to execute the contract and begin the proposed engagement, the Administration 
is presenting the attached Agreement and Resolution for Council's approval. 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for HR Services 
in February 2022; and 

Whereas, the City received several responses to the RFP and upon evaluation 
determined that the firm of National Career Group was the top response; and 

Whereas, the Administration hereby recommends the firm of National Career 
Group as the firm to perform the proposed HR Services detailed in the RFP; and 

Whereas, the HR Services would be done pursuant to the attached Contract and 
Scope of Work; and 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the 
proposed Contract with the firm of National Career Group to perform the HR Services as 
detailed in the RFP and the Scope of Work. 



NATIONAL CAREER GROUP, LLC 

Response to: 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

HR SERVICES 

(RFP# 22-0030) 

Issued by 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 



RFP - 22-0030 

Table of Contents 

Exhibit A - Proposal 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.0 SCOPE OF PROPOSED SOLUTION 

3.0 LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS 

4.0 COMPANY BACKGROUND/CUSTOMER LIST 

5,0 SUPPLIER CODE OF CONDUCT 

10. PROJECT STAFFING AND RESUMES 

11, COST PROPOSAL 

EXffiBIT B - QUALIFICATIONS AND LICENSES 

EXHIBIT C - DISCLOSURE OF SUPPLIERRESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

EXHIBIT D - LIST OF REFERENCES 

EXHIBIT E - CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

EXHIBIT F - NON~BIDDERS RESPONSE 

CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN AFFIDAVIT 

BID FORM 

2 

4 

4 

5 

7 

8 

9 

10 

15 

16 

21 

22 

24 

25 

26 

27 



RFP - 22-0030 

RFP - 22-0030 

Letter of Transmittal 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Re: RFP 22-0030 

Dear Mr. Carrington, 

National Career Group, LLC Is pleased to present Its response and bid to Request for Proposal #22· 
0030. Our contact Information Is as follows: 

National Career Group, LLC 
17 45 Hamilton Road, Ste 340 
Okernos, Ml 48864 
(517) 881-4471 

In response to the RFP, N.atlonal Career Group will provide a comprehensive review and restructuring 
cif the current Human Resources Department. This wlll lhClude providing the Department all of the 
tools necessary to function as a modern HR Department to assist In the efficient management qf the 
City Infrastructure. 

The package has been emailed as well as hand delivered. This bid Is valid for 120 (one hundred 
twenty) days from March 7, 2022, If there are any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to 
contact me at 517·881-447, 

3 



RFP - 22-0030 

Exhibit A - Proposal 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Executive Summary 

National Career Group, LLC hereby presents its response to the City of Pontiac's RFP for HR Services, 
In its response National Career Group, LLC proposes to meet and exceed the goals in the RFP, 

As pa1t of its offei'ing, National Career droup, LLC will hire 2 Human Resources professionals while 
restructuring the City of Pontiac's Human Resources Depattment. For this offering, the City 
organizatio11al chart will be revised and evalu.ated for employee vacancy needs. Standard Operating 
Procedures will be updated and/or created. A comprehensive wage assessment will be created comparing 
current status and future positions as well. A creation of all job descriptions will be created for the new 
organizational chart. 

Value-added services offered through NationalCareet· Group, LLC are coordination of job postings, 
training the HR for all job vacancies, job portals, on website career sites, comprehensive review of 
personnel files. Review and restmcturing (if needed) of the City of Pontiac>s EEO plan. Detailed 1·eview 
of all outsourced contracts for cost savings cir recommendations to the Mayoi' and Deputy Mayor. 

National Career Gro11p, LLC has worked with the City of Flit1t in the past as well as several other 
companies and municipalities in the past. The costs for the services including all the value-added 
services, National Career Group, LLC will charge $75,000.00. These fees do not include 
expenses such as mileage and hotels. 

The experience of National Career Group, LLC in doing these types of activities are unparalleled 
and risk management has been considered in each individual case. This includes a c1ment 
contract with the City of Pontiac as an Interim Human Resources Director. 

4 



RFP - :22-0030 

2.0 SCOPE OF PROPOSED SOLUTION 

Scope of Work: 

National Career Group, LLC will provide the City of Pontiac with comprehensive analysis of its Human 
Resource Department as well as the overall organizational structure. The overall goal is to rebuild the 
Human Resources Department and bring the policies and procedures up to date. The following ls a !1st of 
services that will be provided: 

• HR Director Search, interviews and create offer letter. (3 viable candidates within 10 days of 
start) 

• Conduct HR Director bc;1ckground checks (upon accepted job offer) 
• Assist with HRD onboarding 
• Conduct HR Generalist/Assistant search, interviews and create job offer. 
• Update COP City-Wide organization chart 
• Staffing COP Citrwide staff position analysis (to reduce cost and overlap) 
• Provide COP city-wide wage analysis 
• create and Update all Job descriptions 
• Create job postings for all Current and potential new positions 
• Launch COP recruitment tools to reduce recruitment costs 
• Review all negative COP reviews on resume sites and train human resources on how to respond 
• Work with the new HR Director on creating a COP succession plan 
• Provide a cost analysis on value of COP FT employee vs External outsourced contractors 

National Career Group, LLC understands the scope of the RFP. It ls our Intent to exceed the scope as a 
value-added offering to the City. Through completion of the above activities, National Career Group; LLC 
is confident that the City of Pontlacwlll have a fully functioning Human Resources Department to 
provide exceptional services to Its employees. 

Timing - It is anticipated that if selected, National Career Group, LLC will begin its work on this project 
within 24 hours of project award and however the wage stlldy wlll be completed according to the RFP 
date. 

Flat Fee for Services: National Career Group, LLC wlll charge a flat rate for its services listed above of 
$75,000.00 (seventy-five thousand dollar$). 

Expenses Exception -The flat fee above does not include travel at federal IRS current rate and hotel 
costs of $150/nlght. It is anticipated that the Project Manager will be on site no more than 3 days per 
week; Hotel expenses are not to exceed 3 days per week. These expenses will be invoiced separately. 

Recruiting Exception: Included in this proposal are the recruiting and hiring of a Human Resource 
Director and a Human Resource Generalist/ Assistant. All o.ther recruiting and hiring done by N.ational 
Career Group will be performed under a separate contract at a rate of 20% of first year wages. 

Warranty- National Career Group, LLC warrants that it will.complete the tasks In the Scope of Work. 

5 



RFP - 22-0030 

Client Relationship - National Career Group, LLC will be on site as needed. Reports and status updates 
will be provided. Meeting will be conducted upon request. 

6 



RFP - 22-0030 

3.0 LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS 

National CareerGroup,LLC submits this proposal with the following assumptions: 

Financial - The assumption is that the City of Pontiac is fully able to finance the project of 
l'estrnctudng the Human Resoutces Depmiment. 
Need-The assumption is that the City of Pontiac has evaluated its Hi1man Resoul'ces Department 
needs but also is aware them may be additional needs that have not yet been discovered within 
the Human Resources Department for it to become an up-to-date functioning entity within the 
City. 
Resources - The assumption is that the key talent needed to effectuate the work will be available 
and engaged as needed dul'ing the scope and timing of this project. 
Competition- The assumption is that if selected, National Careet' Gl'oup woQld not be competing 
with other agencies or companies during the time and scope of this project. 
§chedules - The assumption is that the deliverables .schedule is somewhat flexible based on 
availability of key personnel and data needed to complete the project. 
Technology - The assumption is that the technology needed to use the Paylocity system is up to 
date with all of the modules or if additional modules al'e l'equired to achieve the City's goals for a 
fully functional Human Resoutces Department, the City will acquire the same at no cost to the 
Project. 
Know How - The assumption is that personnel will have the "know how" to operate and access 
information needed for the HRIS systems or the City will arrange and fund training fol' the same. 

7 



RFP - 22-0030 

4.0 COMPANY BACKGROUND/CUSTOME,R LIST 

National Cat·eer Group, LLC and has been in business over 25 years. It was started as National 
Career Group Training and Development, LLC and later became National Career Group, LLC. 

National Career Gl'oup, LLC has 25 in-house Human Res9urce professionals and has 
over 300 associated Human Resource professionals, 

Since 1997, National Career Group, LLC has been working with municipal governments, 
higher education and commercial clients. 

There are no i'ecent analyst reports fo1· National Career Group, LLC as it doesn't apply, 

National Career Group, LLC doesn't have any current lawsuits, legal actions 01· governmental 
investigations against the company incl(\ding, but not limited to, parties of dispute, any equipment 
affected, cause of action, jul'isdiction and date of legnl complaint. 

8 



RFP - 22-0030 

5,0 SUPPLIER CODE OF CONDUCT 

Professional Code of Conduct: 

Be patient and courteous. 

Be Inclusive. We welcome and support people of all backgrounds and identities. This includes, 
but is not limited to members of any :;iexual orientation, gender Identity and E;ixpression, race, 
ethnicity, culture, national orlglh, social and economic class, educational level, color, immigration 
status, sex, age, size, family status, political belief, religion, and mental and physical ability. 

Be consid.erate. We all depend on each other to produce the best work we can as a company. 
Your decisions will affect clients and colleagues, and you s.hould take those consequences into 
account wheh making decisions. 

Be respectful. We won't all agree all the time, but disagreement Is .ho excuse for disrespectful 
behavior. We will all experience frustration from time to time, but we cannot allow that frustration 
to become personal attacks. An environment where people feel uncomfortable or threatened ls 
not a productive or creative one. 

Choose your words carefully, Always conduct yourself professionally. l3e kind to others. Do not 
insult or put down others. Haras.sment and exclusionary behavior aren't acceptable. This 
includes, but Is not limited to: - Threats of violence. - Discriminatory jokes and langLJage. -
Sharing sexually explicit or violent material via electronic devices or other means. - Personal 
ihsults, especially those using racist or sexist terms. - Unwelcome sexual attention. - Advocating 
for, or encouraging, any of the above behavior. 

Do not harass oth.ers. lh general, if someone asks you to stop something, then stop. Wh(;ln we 
disagree, try to understand why. Differences of opinion and disagreements are mostly 
unavoidable. What is important is that we resolve disagreements and differing views 
constructively. 

Our differences can be our strengths. We can find strength In diversity. Different people have 
different perspectives on issues, and that can be valuable for solving problems or generating 
new .ideas .. Being unable to Lmderstand why someone ho.Ids a viewpoiht doesh't mean that 
they're wrong, Don't forget that we all make mistakes, and blaming each other doesn't get us 
anywhere. 

Instead, focus on resolving issues and learning from mistakes. 

9 



RFP - 22-0030 

10. PROJECT STAirFING AND RESUMES 

National Career Group, LLC (NCG) will provide one Project Manager, one Staffing/Project Support 
Analyst, a Finance/ Administrative support person and a Research/ Administrative support employee. 

An organizational chart for this project and all resumes ate included with this response on the following 
pages, 

10 



RFP - 22-0030 

Nadia Sellers, CEO 
Okemos, MI 
517-881-4471 

QUALIFICATIONS ___________________________ _ 

CEO - National Career Group Training and Development Corporation, Lansing, Michigan 1997 to 2013 

National Career Group, LLC 2013 to present 

Duties: Assisting human resources departments with recruiting professionals for their organizations permanent 

positions. Provide human resources consulting to help grow organizations, develop human relations training 

programs, lease software consultants for pending or upcoming software enhancements. Market NCG LLC services 

to companies throughout North America and Canada. Hire and train all NCG LLC HR Professionals in Michigan, 

Illinois and California. Launch Human Resource departments for companies throughout North America. Represent 

municipalities throughout the US as a Human Re latlons/DNI consultant. 

Founder/CEO - Honey Bear Project, Inc. 9/2020-Present 

Duties: Coordinating all non-profit activities. Meeting with development specialists and partners. Managing the 

fundraising activities for NFL Hall of Farner, Willie Lanier's Field of Dreams Program. Coordinating all internal social 

justice programs and recipients as well as the directors of each program. 

President Haute Entertainment Group, LLC 

Professional branding, event planner/marketing and modeling agency. 

Sales Representative - Pitney Bowes Lansing Michigan 

2016-present 

4/92 to 3/97 

Duties: Marketed Dictaphone machines to companies in Howell, Brighton and Novi Michigan. Sold warranties on 

all equipment. Worked with new sales representatives and train them on the sales process. Set up machines for 

new customers and train their staff on how to use our equipment. Deliver set-up and Install new equipment. 

Professional Model: International Moda Moda-Milan Italy (New York) 7/84 to 1991 

Worked as a runway model for several designers in the U.S and Europe. Walked the runway Is several fashion 

shows In NY, Milan and Hamburg Germany. 

Education: 
Manual Arts High School: Diploma 

University Southern California: Major Business Management 

Hobbies: 

Social Justice charities, Educational charities, Children's charities, tennis, golf, coaching 6 and under basketball. 

Former professional basketball player, 

11 



RFP - 22-0030 

DeShayney Sellers, President 
Los Angeles/Chicago, IL 

517"402"1586 

President NCG, West Coast" National Career Group LLC, Okemos, Ml 1/2013 to Present 

Duties: As President of NCG Los Angeles, we provide nation wide professional staffing services to 
companies seeking to hire permanent employees. NCG was founded in March 1997 by Nadia Sellers, 
whose office is located in Okemos, Ml. With over 25 years of combined experience and 300 affiliated 
associates, NCG has been growing rapidly throughout the years. Our commitment is to our clients in 
which they receive the highest level of customer service and dedication from our recruiters. NCG's 
success is based on "Relationships Built Today to Last Forever" Our number one commitment is our 
clients. 

As a dedicated Permanent Staffing Executive, Professional Human Resources Consultant and President 
of National Career Group T&D/National Career Group, LLC. I assist a team of Executive Recruiters in 
Business Development, Employee Leasing, Human Relations Training, Outsourcing/Career Counseling, 
Contract/Permanent Staffing and Employee Verification. Our skills and methods are world class. I work 
closely with HR Teams in industries such as (but not limited to): Automotive, Health Care, Education, 
Municipalities, Metals, Manufacturing, Electronics, Logistics, Defense, Chemical, Textiles etc ... 

Operations Manager - Beverly Hills, CA 
JZ&A Finance 

Education: 

Harrington College of Design 

Hobbies: 

Travel, Interior Design, Singing and Recording 

2012 - 2013 

2009-2011 

12 



RFP - 22-0030 

1612 Olds Ave. 
Lansing, Ml 48915 

(517) 888-6070 
jhouseofsoles@yahoo.com 

Julia Diana Ward 

Summary of 

Qualifications 

Education 

1/2020-Present National Career Group Okemos, Ml 

Accounts Receivable/Payroll Specialist 

• Preparing and billing invoices to clients for services rendered 
• Posting payments into Quickbooks Pro Plus 2016 
• Communicating with clients 
• Email, mail and fax invoices as needed to responsible party 
• Prepare payroll for processing to Paychex 
• Review employee timesheet to insure accurate information 
• Call employee to verify accurate information on timesheets 
• Review the online planner for each client to insure accurate service rendered 
• Interview candidates for employment as a home health aide 
• Review all applications for completion and accuracy 
• Administrative and research support 

5/2018 - 1/2020 Visiting Angels 

Accounts Receivable/Payroll Specialist 

Okemos, Ml 

• Preparing and billing invoices to clients for services rendered 
• Posting payments into Quickbooks Pro Plus 2016 
• Communicating with clients 
• Email, mail and fax invoices as needed to responsible party 
• Prepare payroll for processing to Paychex 
• Review employee timesheet to insure accurate information 
• Call employee to verify accurate Information on timesheets 
• Review the online planner for each client to insure accurate service rendered 
• Interview candidates for employment as a home health aide 
• Review all applications for completion and accuracy 

12/2013-10/2017 Keck Medical of USC Los Angeles, CA 

5/2011- 7/2012 ICM Medical Imaging and Diagnostics Inglewood, CA 

4/2008 - 2/2011 Sunrise of Playa Vista Playa Vista, CA 

9/2006-12/2007 Ages Living South San Francisco, CA 

10/2000 - 6/2006 National Career Group Training and Development Corp Lansing, Ml 

8/1995-10/2000 Sparrow Development Incorporated (SDI) Lansing, Ml 

6/1994- 8/1995 Dental Medical Services Incorporated Lansing, Ml 

13 

1975-1977 Cal State University of Northridge 



RFP - 22-0030 

Jason Anthony 
Holt, MI 48842 

jkanthony8 l@gmail.com 
517-614-8868 

Work Experience 
1099 Contractor for Honey Bear Project 
Honey Bear Pmjecl - Okemos, MI 

Jun\'l 2021 to Presenl 

Supervisor: Nadia Sellers 
Job Title: HBP Reseatcher/Executive 
Assistant to the CEO 

I am currently fimctioning as a res.e.archet and as the Executive Assistai1t for the CEO of the )Joney Bear Project. 
My duties include (but are not limited to) assisting Ms. Sellers in scheduling a11d managing hel' time, drafting 
reports, reseal'Ching charity outreach contacts, drafting conespondence, drafting office docume1itation, data entry, 
mail preparation, courier work, arid providing general assistance as needed to the team where able. 

1099 Contracto1· for National Career Group, LLC/Haslett Public Schools 
Ni1tioi111\ Career Group, LLC - Okemos, !'vii 
October 2020 to June 2021 

Supervisor: Nadia Sellers (NCO) & 
Steve Kioski (Haslett) 
Job Title: Janitorial Lead Contractor 

While working as the Janitorial Lead Contractor, my job duties consisted of keeping my assigned areas atWilkshire 
Pl'e-K cleaned to the standards is.sued by the district. This included meeting the Distdct's Covid Protocols, which 
were ongoing during my tetrnre there, I performed xoutine m,iintenance on the building and janit01•ial machinery and 
lawncare duties for Wilkshire's Courtyard. Dudng the winter l assisted with snow removal and salting the walks to 
m(lintain a safe envh'onment for everyone, J also functioned as a go-between for the contractors working for NCO 
and the lead custodial manager Working for the district. Finally, I was responsible for assisting with the setup and 
teardown of the lunchroom and kitchen every day. · 

Paralegal/Legal Assistan.t 
LAW OFFICES OF CASEY D. CONKLIN, PLC - Okemos, MI 

April 2017 to October 2020 

While working for the Law Offices of Casey D, Conklin, I was functioning as both Paralegal 1JndLegal Secretary. 
My responsibilities include conducting legal research,.preparation of discovery and evidentiary materials, 
redaction of sensitive information, conducting attol'l1ey- client communications, coordination of office services; 
book-keeping, data entry tasks1 record preparation, legal and conVetltiohal document drafting, communication 
with the courts and various other governmental and administrntive entities, mail preparation, filing, billing, and 
scheduling, 

Worked full time as a Paralegal from January, 2013 to March, 2017 when Ms. Flxel left the practice of law and 
Fixel & Nyeholt's business location and assets were sold to the Law Offices of Casey D, Conklin, PLC, While I 
wotked for Fixel & Nyeholt, I was the paralegal for three of the attorneys within the office. My job responsibilities 
inc.luded conducting legal research, prep!}ration of discovery and evidentiaty materials; redaction of sensitive 
information, conductiug attorney-client communications,coordination of office services, book-keeping and dota 
entry, legal and conventional document drafting, commtmication with the courts and various other governmental 
and administrative entities, mall prepa1·ation, and filing. Assisted with two cases resulting in published decisions 
(one federnl, one state). 

NYEHOLT LAW OfFICES, PLLC " Okemos, Ml 
June 2013 to Mnl'Ch 20 I 7 

Job Title: Paralegal 14 

Additional wod<. and volunteer experience prior available upon request. 



RFP 22-0030 

COST PROPOSAL 

National Career Group, LLC 

Addendum to Proposal 

N,~tional Career Group,LLC submits this comprehensive proposal to the City of Pontiac which 
exceeds the scope of work requested. For its services the final cost proposal is as follows: 

11 weeks Service Offerings - $67,000.00 not to exceed 
Expenses - Hotel $ 4,950.00 not to exceed (as needed) 
Mileage - $ 2,471.04 not to exceed 
Total Cost not to exceed $74,421.04 

This project will take National Careel' Group, LLC an estimated eleven (11) weeks to complete. Itis 
based on a flat fee for all services listed in Section 2- Scope of Proposed Solution. No houl'!y rates are to 
be charged. The trilVel cost break down is based on mileage from otu· corporate offices in Okemos 
Michigan to City Hall in Pontiac Michigan and at the IRS government mileage rate for 2022. Mileage is 
$74.88 per trip. Hotels are calculated at $150.00 per night (not to exceed 3 days/week). 

The City of Pontiac will have to contribute support staff as needed to successfully carryout the RFP scope 
of project to achieve the desired results. 

There is no cost for the Assessment Phase of the Project as National Career Group, LLC is already on site 
and has a full understanding of the RFP Scope of Work. National Careel' Gro1.1p, LLC can begin 
producing results immediately without costs or delays for assessment. 

Payment schedule is as follows: 

$25,000.00 due on or before April 8, 2022 

$25,000.00 clue on 01· before May 6, 2022 

$25,000.00 balance upon completion. 



RFP - 22-0030 

EXHUUT B - QUALIFICATIONS AND LICENSES 

Please give a synopsis of your qualificatior,s and experience with this service: 

National Career Group, LLC (NCG)/NCG T&D, LLC has been In business since 997 primarily focused on 
Human Resources Training and Development, Permanent Staffing, Leadership) Consulting and DNI 
training. NCG has been hired by multiple companies and municipalities to perform evaluations and 
subsequent staff rE!-organization, training and consulting. 

NCG has received several awards Including the following from NBCLEO (National Black Caucus of Local 
Elected Officials) and WMIG (Women in Municipal Government): 

Award Received -City of Kansas City, MO. For excellence ih Consulting and DNI Training. WMIG 
Award Received - City of Kansas City, MO. For excellence in Consulting and DNI Tralriirig, NBCLEO 
Award Received - City of Los Angeles, CA. For excellence In Consulting and DNI Training, NBCLEO 
Award Received - City of Flint, Ml. For excellence in Consulting and DNI Training. NBCLEO 
Award Received - City of Washington D.C. For excellence in Consulting and ON I Training. Presented 
by Roosevelt Coats, President of NBCLEO. 

NCG ls a member with Nadia Sellers on the Board of NAAAH R (National Association of African Americans 
in Human Resources). 

Please list Licenses: 

NCG Is certified professional Human Relations Company With NationalWomen1s Business Enterprise as a 
WBENC. Please see Capability Statements and Certifications 

How long have you been In business? 

25 years. 

Have you done business with the City of PONTIAC? 

Yes, Currently on a consulting assignment In COP and acting c.urrent HR Director. It is a contracted 4-
week assignment. 

If yes, please state the project name. 

Interim Consultant/Human Res.ource Dlre.ctor. 

16 



RFP - 22-0030 

National Career Grnup, LLC 

Diversity Equity Inclusion Consultants 

BUILDING WORLD CLASS DIVERSITY EQUITY 
INCLUSION PROGRAMS 

• Commitment 
• Compassion 
• Actio11 
• Accountability 
• Gender Equality 
• Language and Communication 
• Competitive Advantage 
• Innovation 
• Corpmate and Community Responsibility 
• Value Creation 
• Generational Impacts 
• Empathetic Leadership 
• MissionDdven 

WHAT WE DO 
BEST 

Long Tenn Diversity Partners 
Equity & Inclusion Training 
Building Diverse Teams 

• Developing DNI Champions 
Recruitment & Retention Strategies 

• Diven~ity .& Inclusion Assessments 
• Design and Build Sustainable DNT Programs 

Executive Coaching 
Self-Assessment fostruments 

WHY IT MATTERS 
Corporate Responsibility 
Increase profits 
Reduce workplace hat·ass111ent 

• Improve productivity and industrial relations 
Competitive advantage 

,......... 

~ 

Cost savings vs defending discrimination suits 
Improve corporate branding 

certified 
WBEN@ 
\\'C,-Hti''f, \l1JVHU$ UlllltffM.( 



RFP - 22-0030 

NATIONAL CAREER GROUP, LLC 

WHAT WE DO BEST: 

• Permanent Staffing 
• Human Relations Training 
• Humah Resources Cohsulting 
• Contract Staffing 
• Outsourcing/Career Counseling 
• Launch Staffing Support 
• Employee Leasing 
• Employmeht Verification 

INDUSTRIES SERVED: 

• Automotive/Warehousing 
• Manufacturing & Industrial 
• Energy/ Aero-Space/Defense 
• City and State Government 
• Consumer Goods/Products/Retail 
• Insurance 
• Healthcare & Medical 
• Architecture/Design/Construction 
• Higher Education 

CONTACT .INFORMATION: 

HEADQUARTERS : 

NADIA SELLERS, CEO 

517.881.4471 

Nadl□ @nntlonalcareergroup.coin 

MJDWEST CONTACT: 

Joni F., VP 517,225.6680 

WEST-COAST CONTACT: 

DE.SHANEY SELLERS, V.P. 
517.402.1586 

[)sellers@ 11allo11alcareergt'oup.corn 

NAICCODHS: 

61,1430,561312,541612 

www.nationalcareergroup.com 

18 

'• t./ •-cm• 
,:• (. ···••, 



RFP - 22-0030 

NATIONAL CAREER GROUP, LLC 
LEAN WORK CAP ABILITIES 

WHAT WE DO BEST 

Continuous Improvement 
Kai:z:en Facilitation 
Kata for Daily Improvement 
Lean Tools 
Problem Solving 
LCI Tralhing 

Business Transformation 
Employee Engagement 
Strategic Planning 
Leadership Alignment 
Executive Coaching 

Leadership Development 
Leading Operational Excellence 
Coaching and Mentoring 

LCI TRAINING INSTITUTE 

FEMEA (Process & Design) 

APQP 

MSA 

PPAP 

LPA 

5 Core Auton'10tive Tools Overview SPC 

APQP to PPAP for Non-engineers 

Structured Ptoblem Solving (8-D) 

Root Cause Analysis for Administrative Processes 

INDUSTRIES SERVED 
Automotive 
City and State Government 
Manufacturing & lhdustrial 
Energy 
Consumer Goods/Products 
Aerospace/Defense 
Insurance 
Healthcare & Medical 
Retail 
Packaging and Containers 
Construction Equipment 
After market Automotive 
Plastic/Rubber suppliers (any market) 



0 
rn 
0 
0 
N 
N 
I 

a.. 
u.. 
a:: 

I 1101 s 

WBEN@ 
"NOr .. ~.s.~.;-s susi:NESS.E:N.":'E:~PP.l.Sf 
i-JA'T!CN;;.L -C-OJJt~OL. 

'""""-~u~~a,u,.wcu,wc-. 

hereby grants 

to 

NCG LLC DBA National Career Group LLC 

who has successfully met W:SENC's ~tandardsas a Women's Business Enterprl$e (WBE). 
Thi,; ccrrification affirms the business is woman-owned, operated and controlled and is v.ilid through the date hcrcin. 

C:r:ific,.clon Gr::.nttd: Scptanbcr 16, :!020 
E:qiiracio11 D~tc: Scpc~mbcr lG, 2022 

\VBENCN:ttio!121 C=iii=iott Number: \VllE2002235 

N.'\ICS,¼1311, ¼U:lll 
L~:SOUC'Ol.SOUl707,SOlll"'OS.SOl1:.710,SOlll7l5,SOlll716 

(,. _ _._., __ ~' =·> -.... ..,. '!'.!~~~E:: ~::.:;,~,::, 
-c,,._.,,,._ 

WB.ENC K~tion:I Wl>E Ccrufa::tcion ""' pr=se,hml <:ilid.:«! bv Gre::, Ltl;c, Womec'o 
!lusin=Council.~ WBENC Rcgio:ul Pmr.ccOrg,.na.;,loa. • 

~~ 
l 

.'l:cl1ari:.::do,, J.!lcl:dldUci!:ttds, !'mid.:nt 
Grat L,k,:,, \X'o=·• Bu,me, Council 

\\ '- ' 
WSECEf§I" VfBECQP\/ ~c:,·,;;=,:: 

\\•BEA 

Great Lakes 

stfsiness 
COUNCIL 

WBEcs;,:c' ~ ~.§£?!EST 

0 
N 



RFP -22-0030 

EXHIBIT C- DISCLOSURE OF SUPPLIER RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

1. List any convictions of any person, subsidiary, or affiliate of the company, arising out of obtaining, 
or attempting to obtain a public or private contract, or subcontract, or in the performance of such 
contract or subcontract. 

N/A- None 

2. List any convictions of any person, subsidiary, or affiliate of this company for offenses such as 

embezzlement, theft, fraudulent schemes, etc, or any other offense indicating i;t lack of business 

integrity or business honesty which affect the responsibility of the contractor. 

N/A - None 

3. List any convictions or civil judgments under state or federal antitrust statutes, 

N/A- None 

4. List any violations of contract provisions such as knowingly (without good cause) to perform, or 

unsatisfactory performance, in accordance with the specifications of a contract. 

N/A- None 

5. List ;my prior suspensions or debarments by any government agency. 

N/A • None 

6, List any contracts not completed on time. 

N/A-None 

7. List any documented violations of federal or state labor laws, regulations or standards, or 

occupational safety and health rules. 

N/A- None 

21 



RFP -22·0030 

EXHIBIT D - LIST OF REFERENCES 

Providing the following contact information enables the City of PONTIAC to contact those accounts as 

references. 

Reference #1: 

Company/Municipality: Detroit Chassis, LLC 

Contact Person: Carlton Guthrie Title: Co-Chairman 

Address: 6501 Lynch Rd 

City: Detroit State: Ml Zip: 48234 

Telephone: 313-433-2224 

Email: cguthrie@detroitchassis.com 

Type of Project: Consulting, Lean Continuous Improvement and Executive Placements. 

Project Timeline (Dates): 1998-present Budget: ongoing 

Reference #2: 

Company/Municipality: Tag Holdings, LLC 

Contact Person: Joe Anderson Title: Chairman 

Address: 30260 Oak Creek Dr. 

City: Wixom State: Ml Zip: 48393 

Telephone: 248.-789-6522 

Email : jba@taghold.com 

Type of Project: Several new acquisitions and companies formed since 2001. NCG has selected 
to 

create and staff many of the new companies and create Human Resources departments and 
processes for each. Consulting and Wage Assessments. This relationship continues, 

Project Timeline {Dates): 2001-preseht Budget: ongoing 

22 



RFP - 22-0030 

Reference #3: 

Company/Municipality: Spectrum Health Systems 

Contact Person: Ovell Barbee Title: CHRO 

Address: 100 Michigan St. NE 

City: Grand Rapids State: Ml Zip : 49503 

Telephone : 616-856-8660 

Email: obarbee@iuhealth.org 

Type of Project: NCG was hired as a consultant for Diversity Recruitment and Executive 

Placement. 

Project Timeline {Dates): February 2020 - present Budget: ongoing 

23 



RFP - 22-0030 

EXHIBIT IC - CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

~ I/ATICAR·10 

ACORD' "''""""'""m "-- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11ei2022 
llllS CEI01FIOA11! 1$ ISSIIW M /I 1,11\ITJaR OF ilffl)RfAAllOH OHLV /\HO OOllnRSNOf\lOltlS IIPOH ma ceRIIFIC/\TEUOLDER.11118 
CERTiflCi\TI! l!OE9 HOT AFFIRl,IAllVELY OR tmwnveLY I\MEHD, l:XlEHD ()ff /\LlER 1111! COVl:MOE AFFORDED DYTIIEPOUCIES 
UELOW, TIii& CERTIFICATE OF l11$UR/IIIQI! l>O~ll IIOT COll~TIT1Jfll A COHTIW!T IJETWEEH TIIElflSUIIIOIIISUf\ER(S),I\Uft(ORllfO 
RE~RE5EllTI\Til/f OR rtl00UOER1 /\HO 111~ CERTIFlCl\lE IIOLDl!ll, 
11,IPORTAIIT: II U\<1 <0!1ifl••l• hold,r ,. •n ... 001110NJ\L IN$UREI), ih• 1><>\l<y(I .. ) moll h•v• /11)01T10H/ILIH8UREO pro-,1,19"' ., h• end•, .. d. 
ti $ijDR00/\110N IS WIIIIIED, aut,f«l lo 010 lormuodco•oill•noolV,.f>Oli<V,<<1t•ln ollcl01m,yr•qulr•••••w .. tm•nl. ll•l•l•m•nloo 

~~!J!l~lo doff not cont~ ri hl• lo th• ••rHM••t.o hol~•t ln llw of 1 

"•"·"·' C>tw 0.oop llO 17,\$ tt•mllton Hd 
Oktmo,, Ml -43&6,4 

Qc;(J,.'U 

nt.U.HWI (t#/r,,JJN')t; 

=:-'::==:;-,---:J@.=;;.=l; __ _ 
y.c11111 __ ·- ~-----r 

··-··-·---· ... !l!IW\<1'tl)~lfQ~l>(!l!)._@YIMO< ..... , ___ , .......JIM~, , , 
....... J!!!<L~!Mifrm1!mm1~1l1 Mutual lns1mrncaJ,!!ll'~JI .. L_ 1~J.!!.!L._, 

l>t1to(a~U,t.E. ___ i 

~~ ~~ .r,m c::r}l(rtlffl<)llt_. ___ . ___ · _ ___ ~-----------·•--~, 
>.or¥fu~,, ___ , , , - -·--- J __ --·-

. -~=m~.1 1w~ ------1 t'o":ft\·1~~,m.. V/ 
t, .. ~.nw:rn1QA..,,,A,~M ► --w,11-.'fi LH. ,.,. 
i~\%'tl;l'J0.l!'t>tll' j ' 

!t~t~,{ 

ltt.fu~~..fu--•""'""""-----1--1---1----------1----•I 
f ~J,illt•t.\(\."1..Q'(f_~· _J__ ~ -----! 

t.J. .. ~~i ... •~-----t 

SP lnvulmtnl• 
~&t.5D<>bl1>Rd 
Sult• 130 
Okerno•, Ml 48l$,I 

$110\11 D l'INY Of TIIE "1JQVE OESCI00£0 POUCIES 0~ CANCtllEO DEIORE 
THE EIIPIRAnOH OA!l! llltREOF, NOTICE Will OE t>ElNERED N 
A(Cc)ROANCE v.m IHE POU CV FROVISIOal. 

24 



RFP - 22-0030 

EXHIBIT F - NON"mDDl~RS RESPONSE 

VENDOR'S NAME: N/A to this submission 

NON-BIDDER'S RESPONSE 

For the purpose of facilitating your firm's response to our invitation to bid, the City of PONTIAC Is 

interested In ascertaining reasons for prospective bidder's failure to respond to "Invitations to 

Bid", 

If your firm Is not responding to this bid, please Indicate the reason(s) by checking any 

appropriate ltem(s) below and return this form to the above address. 

We are hot responding to this "Invitation to Bid" for the following reason(s): 

Items or materials requested not manufactured by us or not available to our company. 

Our items and/or materials do not meet specifications. 

Specifications not clearly understood or applicable (too vague, too rigid, etc.), 

Quantities too Small. 

Insufficient time allowed for preparation of bid. 

Incorrect address used. Our correct mailing address i.s: 

Our branch/ division handles this type of bid. We have forwarded this bid on to them 

but for the future the correct name and malling address Is: 

OTHER: 

Thank you for your participation in this bid. 

25 



RFP - 22-0030 

CITY OF PONTIAC) MICHIGAN AFFIDAVIT 

RFP-22-0030 CITY OF PONTIAC Page 31 of 33 

l'OR PARTNERSHIP 

COUNTVOI' ___ --~C,_.Yr""') 
S,S, 

~•mo,_(~;? 
'T_, \':\&l\Ou Ete.t e IL 'l1 _belngdulysworn, 

dep_9ses and snys that they ore a member of the fltm of e ,'( .e. 
11art'nershlp, making the above bid; that they are duly authorized to mak11 sRld lild on be II of sale! co-partnership; 
that sold bid Is genuine and not sham of collusive, and Is not mnde In the Interest of or on behillf of any person not 
thnroln named, nnd that they hnve nnd said hldder has not directly or lndlrnr.tly Induced or solicited any other 
person ot t<>rporatlon to refrain from bidding, Md that they have not and snld bidder hM not 111 any manner 
$ounhl by c:olluslon to secure to thttmsatves or tn $old bidder any advantage over other bidders. 

Subscribed and ~worn to before me lll WuJi,.us•<- uud1ilnu"o.h.111 ~tild County and State, 

thls_lif~ ___ __;dayof ~ A,D, 20 •. ~ 
~JJ-= - . 

26 



RFP - 22-0030 

BID FORM 

RFP-22-0030 CITV OF PONTIAC 

All proposals wlll be evaluated on the followlog criteria: 

1, Failure to use this bid form shall result in bid disqualffication. 
2. Failure to bid on all Items shall result In an "Incomplete bid" determinallon. 
3, Ust value-added considerations on a separate sheet of paper. 
4. All bid pricing to include shipping and freight charges, 

THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND INCLUDED WITH THE BIO 

Page 21 of 33 

The undersigned hereby certifies, on behalf of the respondent named ln this Certification (the 
"Respondent"), that the Information provided In this offer submitted to the City of PONTIAC, Department 
of Purchase and Supplies Is accurate and complete, and that I am duly authorized to submit same. I hereby 
certify that the Respondent has reviewed all documents and requirements Included ln this offer and accept 
its terms and conditions. · ' 

Terms: ______ _ Fed, ID II: 46•3415334 

Company(Respondent): National Career Group, LLC 

Address: 1745 Hamilton Road, 11340 

City, State & Zip Code: Okemos. Ml 48864 

Phone/ Fax Number: 517-881-4471 FAX: WA 

Email: Nadia@natlonalcareergroup.com 

Print Name and Title: Nadia Sellers, CEO 

Signed: 
(Authorized Representative) 

ProponlU 2~•0010-.CITV Of PONTIAC IIR SERVICES 

27 



#5 

RESOLUTION 



1'"'1TTV 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

City Council President Mike McGuinness and City Council Members 

Mayor Tim Greimel 

Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens and Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

March 11, 2022 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to allocate a 
total $15,250 to the General Fund - to fund new staff position 

As the Administration continues with its transition efforts and works to ensure that the City's 
Administration is sufficiently staffed, I am requesting to add a new position to the City's 
overall organizational chart. The position is PR & Events Specialist in the Mayor's 
Department at an annual salary of $50,000. 

Once the position is created, it also needs to be funded for the remainder of this current 
fiscal year. I therefore submit the attached resolution for your consideration. 

Attachment 



Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to allocate a 
total $15,250 to the General Fund - to fund new staff position 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-22 budget on June 24, 
2021 and; 

Whereas, the Administration has requested the creation of the position of PR & 
Events Specialist and the City Council hereby approves the creation of this new position; 
and 

Whereas, the position of PR & Events Specialist was not included in the original 
budget; and 

Whereas, in order to ensure that the budgeted appropriations remain in compliance 
with the City's Charter, the Budget Ordinance and state Jaw, the Administration is proposing 
a budget amendment for the General Fund; and 

Whereas, the Administration is proposing to the City Council to add the position of 
PR & Events Specialist in the Mayor's Department at an annual salary of $50,000; and 

Whereas, to fund the additional appropriations for the PR & Events Specialist 
position, $15,250 is transferred out of the General Fund-Fund Balance GL account 101-
000-390.000 and $12,500 is transferred to the General Fund GL Account 101-171-702.000 
Salaries & Wages and $1,250 is transferred to GL Account 101-171-715.000-FICA and 
$1,500 to GL Account 101-171-716.000-Medica/ Insurance 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the 
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget as requested by the Administration 
transferring $15,250 out of the General Fund-Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 
and $12,500 is transferred to the General Fund GL Account 101-171-702.000 Salaries & 
Wages and $1,250 is transferred to GL Account 101-171-715.000-FICA and $1,500 to GL 
Account 101-171-716.000-Medical Insurance 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the City 
Clerk to publish the notice of the budget amendment has been approved and one 
week after the publication of the notice. It takes 5 votes to approve a budget 
amendment. 



#6 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

City Council President Mike McGuinness and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

Tim Greimel, Mayor and Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

April 1, 2022 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to allocate a 
total of $30,000 to the General Fund - Mayor's Department to fund consulting 
work for Grants 

The City received during the previous administration a grant from the Community 
foundation for Southeast Michigan in the amount of $100,000. The purpose of the grant 
was to help the City assess and analyze building of centralized grant management system 
and department. To implement the work proposed under the grant, two consulting teams 
were engaged. One team was the firm of Baker Tilly and the other team was comprised 
of philanthropic advisors Dr. Phillip Clan and Ghebre Mehreteab. 

While the grant was for $1 00k the City contracted the two teams at a total amount of 
$130,000. A Final Report for this grant was prepared and presented to the Granter. 
Additionally, the City is continuing its efforts to further development the work needed to 
expand our grant activities, grant funding and development of grant administration. 
Further it is expected that in the upcoming fiscal year, the City will take several steps to 
begin implementing many of the steps that were provided from the work of these two 
consulting teams. 

In order to fully fund this engagement, the Administration is hereby requesting a budget 
amendment in the amount of $30,000. This amendment would cover the work that was 
performed but not fully covered by the grant that was received. 

We therefore submit the following amendment and resolution for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-22 budget on June 24, 
2021 and; 

Whereas, the prior City Council approved the accepting of a grant in the amount of 
$100,000 from the Community Foundation of Southeastern Michigan to fund consulting 
work related to the City's grant activities; and 

Whereas, the total costs of the work contracted related to the project totaled 
$130,000; and 

Whereas, in order to ensure that the budgeted appropriations remain in 
compliance with the City's Charter, the Budget Ordinance and state law, the 
Administration is proposing a budget amendment for the General Fund; and 

Whereas, the Administration is proposing a budget amendment in the amount of 
$30,000; and 



Whereas, to fund this additional appropriation, $30,000 is transferred out of the 
General Fund-Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and $30,000 is transferred to 
the General Fund-Economic Development Department GL Account 101-690-818.000 
Other Professional Services; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby approves the 
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget as requested by the Administration 
transferring $30,000 out of the General Fund-Fund Balance GL Account 101-000-390. 000 
and $30,000 is transferred into General Fund-Economic Development Department GL 
Account 101-690-818.000 Other Professional Services. 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the City Clerk to 
publish the notice of the budget amendment has been approved and one week after 
the publication of the notice. It takes 5 votes to approve a budget amendment. 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the notice of a proposed Budget Amendment for 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 to transfer $30,000 from General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-309-000 to 
the Following General Fund Economic Development Dept. 690- GL Accounts 101-690-818.000 Other 
Professional Services. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-22 budget on June 24, 2021 and; 

Whereas, the prior City Council approved the accepting of a grant in the amount of $100,000 from the 
Community Foundation of Southeastern Michigan to fund consulting work related to the City's grant 
activities; and 

Whereas, the total costs of the work contracted related to the project totaled $130,000; and 

Whereas, the Administration is requesting a budget amendment in the amount of $30,000 to cover the costs 
incurred that exceed the grant received from Community Foundation; and 

Whereas, in order to ensure that the budgeted appropriations remain in compliance with the City's Charter, 
the Budget Ordinance and state law, the Administration is proposing a budget amendment for the General 
Fund;and 

Whereas, the Administration is proposing to the City Council to approve appropriations for the current year 
FY 2021-2022 for GL Accounts General Fund Economic Development Department. 690-Other 
Professional Services Account 101-690-818.000; and 

Whereas, to fund this additional appropriation, $30,000 is transferred out of the General Fund Balance GL 
account 101-000-390.000 and $30,000 is transferred to the General Fund GL Account 101-690-818.000: 

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish 
the notice of a proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 transferring $30,000 out of the 
General Fund-Fund Balance GL Account 101-000-390-000 and $30,000 General Fund Economic 
Development Department. 690-Other Professional Services Account 101-690-818.000. 



#7 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

City Council President Mike McGuinness, and City Council Members 

Mayor Tim Greimel 

Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

April 5, 2022 

Implementation the Flock Safety System 

Honorable Council President and Members of the City Council: 

As you are aware, the City of Pontiac has experienced a sudden spike in violence. 
Recent violent activity has caused senseless casualties of innocent Pontiac residents. 

The Oakland County Sheriff has done a tremendous job in increasing patrol around the 
city and apprehending dangerous criminals to reduce violence within our city. However, 
additional resources are needed to support the reduction of violence in the city. 

The Administration, along with a few members of the City Council, recommend 
implementing the Flock Safety System on a one-year trial basis. Flock Safety System 
would install seventeen units in various locations throughout the city of Pontiac. 

The Flock Safety System is an infrastructure-free automatic license plate recognition 
(ALPR) camera. This system is unique compared to other ALPR systems. It uses Vehicle 
Fingerprint technology to transform hours of footage into actionable evidence, even if the 
vehicle's license plate is not visible. 

The Flock Safety System has a proven track record of assisting law enforcement in 
identifying suspects. It has been instrumental in reducing crime within several cities 
across the county. 

Cities in Michigan that are currently using the Flock Safety System include; Southfield, 
Warren, Flint, and Wyoming. Neighboring cities such as; Waterford and Farmington Hills 
are preparing to implement the Flock Safety System in their community. 

Implementation of the Flock Safety System would be an added tool our Oakland County 
Sheriff partners can utilize in identifying suspects and crimes as we work together to make 
our city safe. 

As such, the following the resolution is being presented for your consideration. 

Attachment 



Resolution to Approve the Implementation the Flock Safety System within the City 
of Pontiac for a Twelve-Month Trial Period 

Whereas, Flock Safety is a company that sells camera-based license plate 
detection systems to review for owners' outstanding warrants; and 

Whereas, The City of Pontiac, the Oakland County Sheriff, and Flock Safety would 
like to implement a trial of the Flock Safety system in the City of Pontiac; and 

Whereas, The Flock Safety systems will be placed in locations in the City right-of
way to be determined collectively between the Sheriff and Flock Safety; 

Now, Therefore, the Pontiac City Council authorizes the implementation of the 
Flock Safety system within the City of Pontiac right-of-way at locations to be determined 
by the Oakland County Sheriff and Flock Safety for a period of twelve months. 


	20220401143508816_0001
	20220401143508816_0002



